
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Business and Housing Policy Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Tuesday, 30th November, 2021 at 6.30 pm. 

Venue 
 
 

Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall 

Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above. In line 
with relevant legislation and public health guidance the following arrangements 
apply. Members of the public should note that a live audio feed of the meeting will be 
available from the council’s website (http://www.winchester.gov.uk) and the video 
recording will be publicly available on the council’s YouTube channel shortly after the 
meeting.  
 
For members of the public who are unable to utilise this facility, a limited number of 
seats will be made available at the above named location however attendance must 
be notified to the council at least 3 clear working days before the meeting.  Please 
note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend and address the meeting 
over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

1.   Apologies and Deputy Members  
 To note the names of apologies given and Deputy Members who are 

attending the meeting in place of appointed Members. 
 

2.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 

Note:  Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, and non disclosable interests in accordance with 
legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct.        

 
If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


3.   Chairperson's Announcements  
 

4.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 September 2021 (Pages 5 - 
10) 

 That the minutes of the meeting be signed as a correct record. 
 

5.   Public Participation  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public on matters which fall within the remit of the Committee 
 
Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at the Policy 
Committee, provided they have registered to speak three working days in 
advance.  Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm on 24 November 2021 
via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak 
and for further details. 
 
 

6.   Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Asset Management Strategy (Pages 11 
- 46) 

 Report Ref: BHP021 and CAB3264 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

It is recommended that the Policy Committee comment on the priorities 
and principles of the HRA Asset Management Strategy: 

 
a) The Asset Management Strategy’s overall outcomes (Section 11.3) 

 
b) The criteria for disposals and acquisition. Where an asset is identified 

in the first instance as being surplus to requirements that it be 
appraised through an options appraisal and an asset is assessed for 
purchase using the acquisition eligibility criteria. (Section 16.4) 
 

 
c) The proposal to fund the provision of fire door sets to leasehold 

properties in the medium rise flats at Winnall (Section 16.2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



7.   Winchester District High Streets’ Priority Plan – up-date and progress 
report (Pages 47 - 80) 

 Report Ref: BHP023 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

The Policy committee are asked to:  
 
1. Note the up-dated Winchester District High Streets Priority Plan. 
2. Note the progress made on project delivery to date.  
3. Make comments and provide direction on the proposed forward 
plan of work to March 2022. 

 
 

8.   Digital Update - Verbal Update  
 

9.   To note the Work Programme for 2021/22 (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

Lisa Kirkman 
Strategic Director 

 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
22 November 2021 
 
Agenda Contact: Matthew Watson, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 317  Email: mwatson@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
Chairperson: Weir (Liberal Democrats) Vice-Chairperson: Fern (Liberal 

Democrats) 
 
Conservatives Liberal Democrats 
Isaacs 
Lumby 
Scott 
 

Bronk 
Craske 
Radcliffe 
 

 
Deputy Members 

 
Horrill and Miller Edwards and Ferguson 
 
Quorum = 4 members 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A public question and comment session is available at 6.30pm for a 15 minute 
period.  There are few limitations on the questions you can ask.  These relate to 
current applications, personal cases and confidential matters.  Please contact 
Democratic Services on 01962 848 264 three days in advance of the meeting for 
further details.  If there are no members of the public present at 6.30pm who wish to 
ask questions or make statements, then the meeting will commence. 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
DISABLED ACCESS: 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

BUSINESS AND HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 21 September 2021 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Weir (Chairperson) 

 
Fern 
Bronk 
Isaacs 
 

Lumby 
Radcliffe 
Scott 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillor Craske 
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Councillor Edwards (as deputy for Councillor Craske) 
 
Other members in attendance who addressed the meeting: 
 
Councillor Horrill 
 
 
Audio and video recording of this meeting  
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES AND DEPUTY MEMBERS  

 
Apologies from committee members were noted as above. Apologies had also 
been received from Monica Gill of Tenants and Council Together (TACT). 
 

2.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Lumby declared a non-pecuniary interest concerning items upon the 
agenda that may be related to his role as a County Councillor. 
 
 
 

3.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 22 JUNE 2021  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 22 June 2021 
be approved and adopted. 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=349&MId=2692&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

4.    TO NOTE THE WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2021/22  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the current version of the 2021/22 work programme be noted. 

 
5.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
David Chafe and David Light of TACT spoke regarding agenda item 6 – “Next 
Generation Winchester”. They commented that it was a useful piece of research 
that would help other departments of the council. They agreed that high house 
prices were a barrier for young people wanting to live in the district and they 
welcomed the council looking into other, affordable housing solutions. 
Concerning item 7 – “New Homes Programme Update Report”, Mr Chafe asked 
if the housing needs analysis highlighted the differences in preferences between 
flats and houses? Mr Light also felt that there had been an increase in the 
number of people not accepting offers for a flat in the hope of an offer for a 
house. Officers responded to these points. 
 
Councillor Horrill spoke on several items on the agenda. Regarding item 6, “Next 
Generation Winchester”, she commended the work undertaken and the model of 
engagement used and hoped that the data would be refreshed regularly to 
ensure its suitability in being used proactively. Concerning item 7 – "New Homes 
Programme Update Report", she welcomed the support of TACT to the council's 
plans and the current plans for extra care schemes but asked for information on 
future sites. She supported the proposal of a rent review task force and referred 
to the benefits that this could bring. Regarding the Housing Company, she urged 
the council to go further and asked for information to understand how the model 
could work in enabling additional units to come forward. Officers responded to 
these points. 
 
Concerning items 8 and 9, Councillor Horrill believed that the Green Economic 
Development Strategy and the Local Plan needed to be more closely aligned 
and she asked when the Local Plan economic analysis would be completed and 
what level of response had so far been achieved. Officers responded to these 
points.  
  
 

6.    PRESENTATION - "NEXT GENERATION WINCHESTER" - PROJECT 
UPDATE  
 
The Housing Policy and Projects Officer provided the committee with a 
presentation, the slides of which had been circulated in advance to members 
and made available on the councils' website. The presentation gave a summary 
of the project whose aim was to understand the expectations, barriers and 
challenges that young people in the district experience in accessing housing. 
The presentation concentrated on the findings and outcomes of the project and 
officers sought the committee's views on the next steps.  
 
 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

The committee welcomed the presentation and asked a range of questions 
concerning; the branding used, the management of young peoples expectations, 
how to include students’ views within the project, the volume split of urban and 
rural participants, the different responses and findings between urban and rural 
young people, understanding the drivers of why young people leave the district, 
the availability of privately rented accommodation, how do comparable cities 
retain their young people, did the council need to raise the level of its ambitions 
and put more resources into shared ownership schemes. The questions were 
responded to by the Housing Policy and Projects Officer and the Corporate Head 
of Housing. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

The committee: 
 

1. noted the contents of the presentation. 
2. agreed that the engagement model be commended for future 

use. 
3. agreed that the research and findings of the project should be 

embedded within the housing strategy review. 
4. agreed that the research and findings of the project should form 

part of the evidence base for future stages of the Local Plan.    
 
 
 

7.    NEW HOMES PROGRAMME UPDATE REPORT  
 
(Report Ref: BHP022) 
 
The Strategic Director and the Service Lead - New Homes Delivery introduced 
the report and provided the committee with an overview of the new homes 
programme and proposals for schemes currently being worked on. The report 
sought the committee's views regarding rent policy, sub-market rented housing 
in Winnall and how the current data on housing need would influence future 
development. Mr Botham brought members up to date on the current data within 
the report. 
 
The committee asked questions on a range of subjects including; total housing 
costs for tenants and whether energy efficiency measures were able to be 
tracked, the wider plans for meeting the district's housing need including asset 
management or communal housing, whether there were adequate resources in 
the new homes team, whether shared ownership was an effective element of the 
programme, the impact of the loss of common spaces within developments, 
whether in rural areas the programme could be closer aligned to local need, 
whether the re-purposing of garage areas was viable and the potential of 
modular construction methods. The questions were responded to by the 
Corporate Head of Housing, the Strategic Director and the Service Lead -  New 
Homes Delivery. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

The committee agreed that: 
 

1. its comments be noted by officers 
2. a piece of work was required to understand the different 

housing tenures and housing need of residents over a lifetime, 
including home ownership options and the associated housing 
costs.  

3. a proposal be brought forward for a revised business case for a 
special vehicle to manage sub-market rented housing in Winnall 

4. officers revisit the work programme in light of the above. 
 
 

8.    LOCAL PLAN - VERBAL UPDATE  
 
The Strategic Planning Manager provided the committee with a presentation that 
gave the initial high-level findings from the Local Plan strategic issues and 
priorities consultation concerning the economic sector, the districts businesses 
and its High Streets.  
 
The committee asked several questions concerning; the council’s scope to 
influence the pattern of land and building use, the limited commercial space in 
rural areas and the impact on local businesses. The questions were responded 
to by the Strategic Planning Manager. 
 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the contents of the presentation be noted 
 
 

9.    WINCHESTER DISTRICT TEN-YEAR GREEN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGY - REPORT  
 
(Report Ref: BHP020) 
 
The Service Lead - Economy & Tourism introduced the report and provided the 
committee with an overview of the contents of the report and an overview of the 
key elements of the strategy and its background. Consultants representing 
Urban Foresight and Thirdlife Economics provided a presentation giving the 
detail of the strategy, the slides of which had been circulated in advance to 
members and made available on the council’s website. The committees’ views 
were sought on several matters before the strategy was presented to the cabinet 
in October 2021. 
 
The committee asked several questions concerning; whether the evidence from 
the local plan analysis should be completed and fed into this report before its 
completion, whether the report could be condensed to be more accessible and 
did the council had adequate resources to take this work forward. The questions 
were responded to by officers and the consultants. 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
 

The committee agreed: 
 
  

1. it welcomed the report and that its comments be noted by officers 
2. that a version of the strategy report be made as accessible as 
possible, and a digested version be considered as a communications 
tool 
3. that the council continues its engagement with external 
stakeholders to further refine and develop the strategy 
4. that further, practical sessions be undertaken with members to 
understand the trade-offs in achieving the council’s goal of zero net 
carbon  

 
 

10.    A DIGITAL ECONOMY FOR WINCHESTER - UPDATE  
 
(Verbal Update) 
 
The Service Lead - Economy & Tourism provided the committee with a verbal 
update providing details of progress since the previous meeting. He updated 
members regarding the public survey responses and wider public engagement, 
the call for evidence process, the task and finish group meeting in October and 
the online panel debate scheduled for November or December. Mr Gostelow 
also advised that the survey and call for evidence would close in January and 
following evaluation it was planned to bring an update paper to this policy 
committee in March 2022.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the update was noted 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 9.00 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



  
 

BHP021 
BUSINESS & HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) ASSET MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY  
 
30 NOVEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset 
Management   

Contact Officer:  Janette Palmer    Tel No: 01962 840 222 Email 
jpalmer@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Policy Committee comment on the priorities and 

principles of the HRA Asset Management Strategy: 

a. The Asset Management Strategy’s overall outcomes (Section 11.3) 

b. The criteria for disposals and acquisition. Where an asset is identified in 

the first instance as being surplus to requirements that it be appraised 

through an options appraisal and an asset is assessed for purchase using 

the acquisition eligibility criteria. (Section 16.4) 

c. The proposal to fund the provision of fire door sets to leasehold properties 

in the medium rise flats at Winnall (Section 16.2) 

 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



   CAB3264 
 

 

CAB3264 
CABINET 

 

REPORT TITLE: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) ASSET MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY 
 
8 DECEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Kelsie Learney, Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Asset Management  

Contact Officer:  Janette Palmer        Tel No: 01962 848 120 Email 
jpalmer@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The HRA Asset Management Strategy sets out the focus of long term investment 
plans and key principles for managing housing assets.  It seeks to ensure that the 
council makes best use of its stock to meet current and future housing need as well 
as addressing the emerging challenges such as the provision of energy efficiency 
homes and compliance with the Building a Safer Future regime. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  

That Cabinet: 

1. Adopt the updated HRA Asset Management Strategy included as Appendix 1 

to this report. 

 

Page 12



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

 The formally declared climate emergency; set challenging targets of a 

carbon neutral Council by 2024 and carbon neutral District by 2030.  The 

former will include a requirement for a carbon neutral housing stock. HRA 

Asset Management considerations can be divided into 2 clear areas  

o Existing stock  

o New build 

 Cabinet Report CAB3291 - Housing Development Strategy 2021 - 2030 

sets out design expectations for future new build schemes. 

 Cabinet Report CAB3293 - Making homes carbon neutral sets out the 

approach for existing stock. 

1.2 Homes for all – Setting out an approach to maximise the opportunities to 

increase supply of homes that meet decent homes standards and are 

compliant with building regulations and health and safety rating standards is 

the aim of the Strategy. 

1.3 Vibrant Local Economy - Provision of good quality affordable housing helps 

the district retain a diverse workforce and contributes to the local economy.  

1.4 Living Well - The provision of good quality housing is linked to and has a 

direct impact on wellbeing.  

1.5 Your Services, Your Voice – Consultation and the provision of resident 

information is a prerequisite to determining the approach and effective 

delivery of many elements of the strategy. Some detail is set out in section 6 

and the Action Plan includes activities relating to raising awareness with 

tenants of what achieving carbon efficiency targets means on a day to day 

basis in terms of living with systems and their cost.  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 The HRA Budget and Business Plan is reviewed annually and the current 30 

year HRA Business Plan allocates identified resources to ensure that the key 

priorities for this Strategy are delivered.  

2.2 Details of the capital investment, annual maintenance and estate 

improvement programmes in place to ensure decency standards are met and 

Page 13



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

that the stock is fit for purpose are set out in CAB3290 Housing revenue 

account budget 2021/22 and procurement of term maintenance contracts.  

2.3 Fire Safety - CAB3290 - Housing revenue account budget 2021/22 and 

procurement of term maintenance contracts – The 10 year housing services 

capital programme includes a fire safety provision of £2.1m in anticipation of 

the full recommendations arising from the Hackitt review. Financial 

implications of all leaseholders taking up the offer of free of charge doors set 

out in section 16.2 has an estimated cost of £50 - £60k. 

2.4 Energy efficiency - The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget approved by 

Council in February 2021 (CAB3290 refers) includes provision of £15.7m 

between April 2021 and March 2031 to fund energy efficiency and carbon 

reduction measures to Council dwellings. This is in addition to the Major 

Repairs programme previously approved in the HRA business plan.  

2.5 Sewage treatment works – CAB3290 – set out in paragraph 14.8 that the 

ongoing investment requirements of the HRA sewage treatment works is 

currently being reviewed by officers with the aim of creating a robust future 

asset management strategy around these assets. In the meantime the 

Housing Services Capital Programme allows for a minimum of £3.1m of 

investment over the next 30 years. 

2.6 Estate improvements – the Government White Paper `A Charter for Social 

housing residents’ proposes a review of the decent homes standard. The 

reviewed standard may make reference to the surrounding environment. 

Currently £400k per annum is set aside for these works until 2029/30 with 

allowances for slippage and inflation over the period.  

2.7 Nitrates - All new housing developments must address the nitrates neutrality 

issue through a nitrates mitigation plan as part of the planning application. 

This will involve an estimated additional cost for each new home of between 

£3,000 and £7,000 per unit if nitrate credits have to be acquired from a third 

party, the council will continue to investigate alternation options to off-set 

nitrates through improvements to existing sewage works and purchasing land.   

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The council is not required by law to have an HRA Asset Management Plan, 

but it is considered best practice among local authorities throughout the 

country to have one for its area, covering all of its Housing stock, including 

Leasehold properties sold under the Right to Buy.  It is also considered good 

practice under the self-financing code for HRAs. 

3.2 In addition, the council does have a legal duty to all of its tenants and 

leaseholders as both Housing Authority, under the various Housing Acts, and 

as landlord, both under the various tenancies and right to buy leases 

Page 14



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

completed with its leaseholders, which forms a contract between the parties, 

and also under landlord and tenant legislation and common law, to maintain 

all its properties in a good and safe condition. 

3.3 The council’s properties must be kept free from health hazards, and must 

meet all relevant safety and decent homes standards.  Under the right to buy 

legislation, under which council properties are sold to its tenants, the doors of 

leasehold flats will belong to the leaseholder. The council will therefore need 

to liaise with all relevant leaseholders and inform them that it proposes to 

replace their front door with a fire safety door in accordance with current 

practice.  It is proposed that in return for this, the leaseholders will agree to 

vary their lease to bring it more in line with current practice, including safety 

issues.  This will naturally take some time and output from the council but it is 

considered imperative so as to comply with its statutory duties as Housing 

Authority and as landlord. (Please refer to Paragraph 11.18 below.) 

3.4 As part of the replacement front door programme the intention is to approach 

leaseholders living in the medium rise blocks at Winnall to agree variations to 

their lease so as to try to rationalise them so all leases are essentially the 

same as all others, which is not the position now. 

3.5 Any direct or in-direct procurement as a result of the HRA Asset Management 

Strategy will be conducted in accordance with Public Contract Regulations 

2015 (PCR2015) and the council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  Resulting 

contracts will be managed in-line with the council’s Contract Management 

Framework. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 Elements of the Asset Management Strategy cannot be addressed within 

existing resources.  

4.2 Energy Efficiency - along with the Energy officer proposed in CAB3293 the 

introduction of new technology needs to be carefully managed and teams with 

management and maintenance responsibilities will require training and skills 

updates to ensure efficiency gains are not compromised.  

4.3 Fire Safety - the Building Safety Regime will introduce new competency 

standards for roles and a skills audit and training plan will be required. The 

Building a Safer Future Project (BASF) Group will take forward the workforce 

implications arising from legislation and sector good practice.  

4.4 Sewage Treatment works – a specialist service provider is being procured to 

complete the investigations required.  

4.5 Small sites options appraisal – investigating the development potential of 

small sites is outside the capacity of the New Homes team. An outside 

Page 15



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

consultant has been commissioned, financed from existing resources, to carry 

out a pilot project of site options appraisals. 

4.6 Lease Amendments – the work around agreeing variations to leases to try to 

rationalise them may have an impact on staff resources within the Legal 

Team. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 The Strategy seeks to make best use of existing assets to meet housing 

needs and increase supply of new housing along with taking advantage of 

acquisition opportunities.  

5.2 The Strategy takes account of national and local priorities and compliance 

requirements relating to new regimes for building safety and decent homes, 

carbon efficiency targets and nitrates mitigation.  

5.3 Carbon neutral initiatives need to take into consideration lifespan of existing 

systems to make best value for money judgements.   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 A joint TACT and Member Briefing on Energy was held on 3 March 2020; at 

which there was a briefing on the Passivhaus model and the Property 

Services team presented an evaluation and costing of the options for reducing 

carbon emission in HRA residential properties.  

6.2 On 15th September 2020 a virtual meeting with some involved tenants was 

held ahead of the Health and Environment Policy Committee on 30 Sept 2020 

to talk through the content of the Committee presentation. 

6.3 Wider tenant consultation on improving energy efficiency of council homes 

was conducted through a digital survey in Oct /Nov2020. A 17% response 

rate was achieved. 

6.4 The strategy priorities and digital survey results were presented and 

discussed with involved tenants on 25 November 2020.  

6.5 A presentation of the headline elements was given to TACT on 22 July 2021. 

They asked that details of the community and non-operational assets be 

presented at a future meeting of TACT for consideration. A copy of the 

presentation was also sent to the Chairs of the Housing Management and 

Repairs and Maintenance Service Delivery Groups. 

6.6 The recommendations were presented to tenants at the September TACT 

Meeting. Tenants were presented with a scenario to debate disposal criteria 

priorities; the majority favoured retaining rural housing stock even where the 

investment required to achieve energy efficiency was substantial, properties 

Page 16



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

are not traditional social housing stock and the property was of high value. 

Those present supported HRA funding of replacement front doors at Winnall 

medium rise blocks for improved fire safety. 

6.7 This report was considered at Business and Housing Policy Committee on 30 

November and a verbal update will be provided to Cabinet.  

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 A key element of the HRA Asset Management Strategy is working towards 

achieving the Council’s carbon neutral targets. 

7.2 The HRA Asset Management strategy, along with the Housing Development 

Strategy, will consider how the Council can use its assets to mitigate nitrates.  

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 The HRA Asset Management Strategy priorities relating to new homes 

provision, carbon efficient housing and fire safety have been presented in 

separate reports along with the relevant the impact assessment details. 

8.2 Equality Impact Assessment screening on the HRA Asset Management 

Strategy identified the following issues relating to the carbon neutral agenda: 

a) Potential impact on those with low incomes through increased heating 

costs relating to change over to energy efficient systems  

b) Potential impact of increased heating costs is of particular importance 

where good heating provision relates to wellbeing and health for some 

groups such as those in health conditions, young households, and 

older households. 

c) Impact on some household groups of disruptive works relating to 

improving the energy efficiency of homes  

8.3 Mitigating measures 

a) Complete works in voids properties wherever possible. 

b) Focus on fabric first while evaluating heating options and exploring 

future technology options.  

c) Improve awareness of low carbon solution; consideration to be given to 

household communication needs to ensure key messages are 

understood. 

8.4 Assessment concluded that the provision of good quality housing that meets 

the needs of all household groups is the objective of the strategy. Asset 

Page 17



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

options appraisal includes assessment of the benefits and disadvantages on 

different groups as part of that process.  

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 None Required  

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

10.1 As previously mentioned significant elements of the HRA Asset Management 

Strategy have been the subject of stand-alone Cabinet reports i.e. fire safety, 

carbon efficient housing and the Housing Development Strategy. These 

reports set out the risks associated and therefore these are not replicated 

here. 

10.2 The main risks to achieve the outcomes of the HRA Asset Management 

Strategy are around:  

a) Changes to the financial environment under which the Strategy 

operates which has implications for funding and rents,  

b) Outcome of new and reviewed standards and compliance requirements 

i.e. decent homes, building safety 

c) Impact of COVID on the demand for internal and external space, agile 

working practices and economic stability of households.  

d) The supply of materials and skilled workforce. 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial Exposure 

Changes in the macro 
economic environment 
(such as inflation and 
interest rates) -  impact 
on build and borrowing 
costs, funding availability 
and levels, rent policy 
 
Govt requirements could 
lead to compliance 
requirements that have 
financial implications for 
the HRA 
 
 
 

 
Treasury management Strategy – 
secures cheaper borrowing. 
Highlight and bring to members 
attention if the environment 
signals a review of approach to 
how rental income is used i.e. 
balance of maintenance against 
development.  
Current focus on improving the 
EPC (Energy Performance 
Certificate) rating.  Open market 
process    
 
CAB3290 sets out investment 

and funding allocations to 

address strategic aims. These 

 

Page 18



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

 
Best Value not achieved 
for disposal and 
acquisition of assets. 
Insufficient HRA 

resources to meet 

strategic aims   

arrangements are routinely 

updated and progress reported to 

Cabinet 

Exposure to challenge 

 

Nitrates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Free of charge 

replacement door sets 

for leaseholders in 

Winnall medium rise  

Flats– challenged by 

leaseholders/tenants 

from other blocks who 

won’t benefit from this 

scheme, by HRA funds 

used to finance works for 

where responsibility sits 

with leaseholders.  

 

 

Determining robust approach 

forms part of the planning 

application process for new build 

developments. 

 

Consider a range of methods to 

mitigate nitrates including 

creation of wetlands, tree 

planting, reed beds for sewage 

treatment plants  

 

Reducing barriers to low take-up 

to improve fire safety for the 

benefit of all tenants  

 

 

Buying credits  

 

Opportunities to 

use council 

owned land to 

create nitrate 

credits.  

 

 

 

Offered in 

exchange for 

changes to 

existing lease 

terms.    

Innovation 

Ability of achieving 

primary objective i.e. 

reduce carbon emissions 

if WCC fails to invest in 

modern systems, fails 

understand new 

technologies and 

systems, is not aware of 

the current options for 

delivering compliance. 

Skilled workforce  

 

 

 

 

Membership of the IHS Account 
(Construction Information 
Services (CIS) recently reinstated 
to prolife access to current 
guidance.  
 
Briefing sessions being organised 
by the New Homes Team to 
develop understanding of new 
build elements and specifications 
and how these can be 
compromised.  
 
Join the “Net Zero Collective” 

partnership 

 

 

Investment in 

BIM technology 

Page 19



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

IT Systems 
Funding and expertise 
required for example 
around BIM and building 
safety information  

Work in conjunction with 

corporate teams to determine 

funding and approach required. 

Consideration of commissioning 

specialist service providers 

Reputation 

Low levels of satisfaction 
with information on how 
to use new heating 
systems and how low 
carbon systems operate. 
 
Complaints not 
progressed effectively. 
 
Fail to achieve outcomes   
 

 
Resident engagement approach 
should address residents’ needs 
around information and how to 
raise concerns.  
 
Central role with responsibility for 
monitoring complaints. 
 
Asset Strategy Management 
Group will monitor delivery Action 
Plan and tenant engagement. 

Joint Briefing 
provided the 
opportunity for 
tenants to be 
involved in the 
Council’s 
approach to 
meeting carbon 
neutral targets. 
 
Tenant 

representation 

on the WCC 

Energy joint 

stakeholder  

forum/panel 

Achievement of outcome 

Staff turnover – loss of 

capacity and expertise, 

limited capacity to be 

compete with other 

housing providers to 

recruit to vacant posts 

and new posts  

Availability of skilled 

workforce and sector 

developing new skills in 

relation to retrofit making 

it difficult to recruit 

competent staff such as 

the energy officer 

Availability of competent 

contractors  

Supply of materials 

Impact of the pandemic 

uncertain environment  

 

Procure services from outside 

providers. 

Commission consultants to 

provide services such as Options 

Appraisal, Compliance services. 

Progress towards Strategy 

outcomes monitored by Asset 

Management Group and risk 

highlighted for members 

attention.  

Where possible build in systems 

that don’t require a skilled 

workforce to maintain    

 

Property 

Decent homes standards 
not maintained  
Dwellings or communal 
areas not being 
effectively utilised. 

 
Keystone asset management 
reports run regularly to inform 
works programme and monitored 
by the Asset Management Group  
 

 

Page 20



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

 
Understanding of how 

carbon neutral systems 

operate by those 

processing works or 

responding to queries 

raised by tenants leading 

to guarantees being 

made invalid as due to 

inappropriate 

maintenance.   

 

Risk if compliance 

requirements are not 

known, understood or 

met 

 
Staff communication plan and 
Training. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Membership of the IHS Account 
(Construction Information 
Services (CIS) recently reinstated 
to provide access to current 
regulations announcements and 
plans.  
Investment in a specialist Energy 
Officer. 
Join the “Net Zero Collective” 

partnership. 

Community Support 

None  

  

Timescales 

Linked to Project 

Capacity below  

  

Project capacity 

Competent contractors – 
availability of competent 
contractors to meet 
requirements of property 
work programmes may 
result in delays.  
 
Capacity of resources to 
react to Sites forwarded 
for appraisal  
 
Options and site 

evaluations outside the 

capacity of lead and 

support teams 

 
National programmes currently 
being developed to support this. 
Scope for local training 
programmes could be 
considered, particularly in 
partnership with other social 
landlords  
Commissioned Site Appraisal 
Project 
 
 
As above  
 

 

Other 

People  

Aiming for Carbon 
neutral targets and may 
conflict with tenancy 
sustainment through 
increased household 

 

 

Highlight the importance of 

understanding the impact on low 

income households of carbon 

neutral initiatives when 

considering the approach to 

 

Page 21



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

costs and new build 
scheme affordability 
Data security  
Reliance on IT systems 
for effective outcome 
delivery 

tackling home energy use. 

 

IMT corporate strategies  

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 The HRA Asset Management Strategy is a key document that supports the 

management of both dwelling and non-operational assets held by the HRA.  

The implementation of the 2017 Strategy has resulted in: 

a) All dwellings being maintained in accordance with the Decent Homes 

Standard 

b) Kitchens now replaced within 20 years 

c) Rationalisation of designated older persons housing with a number of 

previous sheltered schemes now let as general needs housing but a 

significant provision of older persons housing being retained with 

enhanced management/alarm services  

d) A number of Council owned sites being developed for new housing, 

including the Valley at Stanmore which secured over £6m of Homes 

England funding to deliver housing at social rent. 

11.2 The draft Strategy included as Appendix 1 takes full account of the 2017 

Strategy and updates it in light of latest tenant surveys, the Housing White 

Paper and findings of the Hackitt review. It takes account of the current 

waiting list demand and importantly reflects recent decisions with regard to 

the New Homes Programme (CAB3291 refers) and provision for the 

retrofitting of energy measures to existing housing (CAB3293 refers)  

11.3 The draft Strategy seeks to achieve the following overall outcomes: 

a) Increase supply of homes  

b) All homes are energy efficient and affordable to run  

c) A housing stock that meets the current and future needs of client 

groups. 

d) All homes comply with the decent homes standard 

e) Tenants feel safe in their homes & know how to raise concerns 

12 Increasing the Supply Homes 

Page 22



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

12.1 The Council has approved the New Homes Development Strategy with a 

target to build 1,000 net carbon neutral homes by 2031 and has included 

provision of £254m in the HRA Business Plan to deliver this. To end of 2019-

20 the council had sold 176 homes under the Right to Buy since the new 

reinvigorated policy was introduced in 2012-13, which is an average of 22 a 

year.  Each year, stock numbers and profile change through right to buy 

sales, offset by the development of new dwellings and other stock changes.  

12.2 The New Homes Development Strategy recognises the direct link with the 

Asset Management Strategy and the essential need to take account of 

Housing need, existing housing management and current demand.  

12.3 The New Homes Development Strategy recognises the need to secure 

additional land to support the programme.  However, the council retains a 

number of small sites that could still make a positive contribution to the 1000 

homes target.  A key action included within the Asset Management Strategy is 

the commissioning of a review of assets including small areas of communal 

land, other non-operational assets and garage sites to identify development 

opportunities to either feed into the new homes programme or in exceptional 

circumstances to be considered for disposal.  

12.4 Nitrate Mitigation – to address the challenge of Nitrate Mitigation requirements 

for the New Homes programme, works are underway on HRA land at 

Micheldever to reduce nitrate emissions from sewage treatment and produce 

a number of credits to off-set new council development. Further credits will be 

required upon the completion of new schemes and this will need to be 

addressed by further improvements to sewage treatment works, through 

purchasing nitrate credits from third parties or by acquiring land (provision for 

land acquisition has been included in the HRA budget). 

13 All homes are energy efficient and affordable to run  

13.1 CAB3293 approved £15.7m to fund a “fabric first” approach to retro-fitting 

energy measures to existing stock. 

14 A housing stock that meets the current and future needs of client groups 

14.1 The Asset Management Strategy takes count of existing demand for housing 

and seeks to ensure existing stock makes a positive contribution to 

addressing housing need. 

14.2 Housing teams are currently focussing on some key work streams to ensure 

that the Council is making best use of its housing stock. This includes: 

a) Demand for 2 bed flats – Since the pandemic, demand for some two 

bed flats has reduced, particularly where access to outside and 

communal space is limited.  The Council has significant provision of 2 

Page 23



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

bed flats and whilst demand remains in most locations, a small number 

have taken longer to let than previously and a review of lettings policies 

in underway. 

b) Older Persons Housing – The rationalisation of sheltered housing in 

the last 5 years has ensured that designated older persons housing 

(extra care, sheltered and bungalows) is fit for purpose. Schemes 

where access was restricted (no lifts, too many steps) are now more 

appropriately let as general needs housing. Retained schemes remain 

popular although demand is kept under review to ensure the split 

between older persons and general needs housing is appropriate in 

light of demand.   Extra Care housing remains in demand and new 

provision remains a priority for the New Build programme. 

A significant amount of research and collation of evidence as regards 
the emerging issues to meet the needs of older people has been 
completed in the process of developing the strategy. Reference has 
been made to the Strategic Housing Market Assessment February 
2020 along with analysis of bidding patterns from Hampshire Home 
Choice and an evaluation of the service against the Housing Quality 
Network’s self-assessment toolkit. 

c) Temporary Accommodation – The Council has 60 units of temporary 

accommodation which plays a key role in homelessness prevention.  A 

review of existing provision is underway to ensure the provision meets 

relevant national standards.  One building in particular is not 

considered ideally fit for purpose and the potential to adapt it, put it to 

an alternative use or potentially dispose of it is currently being 

considered.  This will be subject to a report to Cabinet in the coming 

months. 

15 All homes comply with the decent homes standard 

15.1 The Council continues to comply with the requirements of the decent homes 

standard for all of its dwelling stock and investment programmes set out in the 

HRA Business Plan are considered to be sufficient to maintain this in future 

years. 

15.2 A 93% stock survey was completed in 2013/14 and regular reviews have 

been maintained since that date. Comprehensive details on all key building 

components are maintained on the Asset Management database including 

replacement dates and this data is used to inform long term maintenance 

plans. 

15.3 Sewage Treatment works – One area where asset information is less 

comprehensive is in relation to sewage treatment works.  These are now 

managed by the Council’s Special Maintenance team and a comprehensive 

Page 24



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

maintenance and improvement programme is being developed.  Some 

provision to fund improvements is included in the HRA Business Plan. 

16 Tenants feel safe in their homes & know how to raise concerns 

16.1 Ensuring that homes are well maintained and comply with all relevant safety 

standards has always been a key priority for the Council and this is reflected 

in investment programmes with specific additional provision for fire doors and 

in performance management regimes (risk assessment process and the focus 

on gas safety compliance for example). 

16.2 The programme to upgrade the existing entrance door sets to flats and 

maisonettes is already under way for council tenants and due to be completed 

over the next three years. The current programme includes entrance doors for 

tenants but not for leaseholders. This is because the leaseholder own the 

entrance door to their property and as such have the responsibility to ensure 

their front door is fire compliant.  However, it is proposed to offer leaseholder 

at the higher risk properties (specifically the four medium rise blocks on 

Winnall - Braxton, Craddock, Earle and Dennett Houses)   a free replacement 

fire rated entrance door. This enhanced fire safety offer by the council will 

ensure the safety of all residents rather than relying on leaseholders to meet 

their fire safety obligations with the potential of putting others at risk. The 

council will use this opportunity in exchange to issue an improved and 

modernised lease.    The estimated cost to the HRA fire budget is £60,000 or 

less depending on take up of the offer and, if approved, will be funded from 

the existing capital budget for this work. 

16.3 This approach is designed to benefit council tenants as well by providing 

additional protection and responds to concerns raised by tenants regarding 

the impact on overall safety as a consequence of the standard to which other 

residents maintain their property. The initiative also adds value to the overall 

door replacement programme. 

 

16.4  Disposals and Acquisitions 

16.5 As part of the HRA Asset Management Strategy, consideration needs to be 

given to the future need to acquire assets, such as land or housing, and if 

existing assets are no longer fit for purpose, to consider a range of options 

that could include realising value through disposal. 

16.6 In terms of disposals, the abolition of the HRA debt cap means that the 

original reasons for developing a programme of asset disposals is no longer a 

factor, as maintenance and development programmes can be fully funded 

from prudential borrowing, effectively funded through future rental income. 

However, whilst any future disposals are likely to only be recommended in 

Page 25



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

exceptional circumstances, some disposals may be required to ensure the 

Council continues to make the most effective use of its housing assets. 

17 Acquisition Criteria 

17.1 Opportunities to acquire assets are anticipated, with the sale of any previous 

“Right to Buy” properties being offered in the first instance to the Council in 

accordance with discount rules.  In addition, the purchase of land to support 

future development is also anticipated and provision for both these issues is 

included in the HRA capital programme. 

17.2 In terms of future acquisitions, it is proposed that the criteria already 

established to assess development opportunities be adapted to assess the 

suitability of a proposed acquisition.  The proposed criteria is: 

a) That the investment has a positive “Net Present Value” (NPV) (that 

acquisition, management and maintenance costs can be met from 

rental income, assessed over 35 years),  

b) That the income stream covers the debt servicing costs of the 

proposal, and  

c) That the HRA Business Plan is able to finance the acquisition and to 

remain both viable and sustainable.  

d) The asset is considered as suitable for social housing either in its 

existing form or with investment in remodelling; fits the future needs of 

the organisation. 

17.3 In addition, there is also the requirement that there also must also be 

approved budgetary provision to fund the acquisition. 

18 Disposal Criteria 

18.1 Whilst the future disposal of assets is only likely to be considered in 

exceptional circumstances, some disposals may be required (as referred to in 

para 14.2c above re temporary accommodation).  In all circumstances, an 

options appraisal to consider alternative uses will be completed.  If disposal is 

recommended, it should comply with at least one of the following criteria:  

a) The asset has a negative NPV  

b) The asset is considered as unsuitable for social housing; doesn’t fit the 

future needs of the organisation 

c) Carbon efficiency – The asset will not achieve EPC C rating or this can 

only be achieved with significant investment in retro fitting 

Page 26



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

d) Land that is not required for social housing purposes and/or which 

makes little or no positive contribution to the neighbourhood 

 

19  Conclusion 

19.1 The Asset Management Strategy actions focus on the following:  

o Increase supply of affordable housing  

o Developing a coherent asset management and investment strategy 

for the sewage treatment works within the HRA  

o Programme of work to deliver energy efficient housing  

o Investment in existing sheltered housing stock to improve 

accessibility, voids standards, digital inclusion and well-being 

services 

o Planning for an extra care scheme to meet the needs of older 

households in the southern parishes 

o Temporary accommodation provision that meets future demand 

o Investment programmes which achieve 0% non-decency   

o Programme of works to meet the requirements of the Building a 

Safer Future regime 

20 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

20.1 Alternative options specific to some of the strategy elements such as reducing 

carbon emissions in HRA residential property were presented in other Cabinet 

reports. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

BHP0021 – HRA AMS – 30 November 2021 

Cabinet Report CAB3291 - Housing Development Strategy 2021 – 2030 – 10 March 
2021. 

Cabinet Report CAB3293 - Making homes carbon neutral – 10 March 2021 

CAB3290 - Housing revenue account budget 2021/22 and procurement of term 
maintenance contracts – 11.02.21 

Page 27



   CAB3264 
 

 

 

Climate Change Update: Reducing the Environmental Impacts (Carbon) in Council 
Housing Stock (Presentation) - Health and Environment Policy Committee - 30 Sept 
2020 
CAB3221 – Fire Safety in Council Housing – 24 June 2020 

CAB3053 (HSG) – HRA Asset Management Strategy – 04.07.18 

CAB2866 (HSG) – Housing Management Strategy – 22.11.16  

CAB2751 (HSG) - Developing a housing asset - management strategy - 22 March 
2016 

Other Background Documents:- 

None  

CAB3301 – Nutrient (nitrate) Neutrality Update – 21.07.21  

 APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Draft HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021 - 2023  

Page 28



WINCHESTER  C IT Y  COUNC IL

DRAFT HRA ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021

BHP021
Appendix 1

P
age 29



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  2

‘ Possible quote to go here ...’ 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management

The council manages around 5,000 homes, of which just 

under 500 are designated sheltered and approximately  

60 units of temporary accommodation; along with 

a variety of community assets including 40 sewage 

treatment works. 

The application of good asset management principles 

ensures the housing stock meets current and future 

needs. The council needs to invest in maintenance and 

improvement but, where necessary, change the portfolio 

to match local circumstances and meet wider challenges 

for the social housing sector.  

This document sets out updated policies and actions 

around managing Winchester City Council (WCC) Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) assets to meet the refreshed 

council Plan 2020–2025 local priorities of: 

•  Tackling the Climate emergency and creating a 

greener district

• Homes for All 

• Living well 

• Your Services, your voice

This document has been developed at a time of significant 

national change with various significant pieces of 

legislation, guidance and regulation being developed 

such as building safety and planning; in addition to the 

anticipated changes in demand as a result of COVID-19 to  

the design of internal and external space. 

The council has a responsibility to ensure that there  

are systems in place that can guide investment  

decisions and support the management of future 

investment programmes.

INTRODUC T ION

PURPOSE OF AN HR A ASSET  

MANAGEMENT STR ATEGY (AMS)

To ensure housing stock and assets 
are well maintained; meet current and 
future needs and aspirations while 
being sustainable and affordable and 
that the Housing Service is proactive in 
responding to emerging issues.

P
age 30



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  3

NATIONAL CONTEXT 

•  Government white paper – a Charter for Social Housing 

Residents – seven themes to set out what every social 

housing resident can expect from their landlord:

–  To be safe in your home 

–  To know how your landlord is performing

–  To have your complaints dealt with promptly  

and fairly

–  To be treated with respect  

–  To have your voice heard by your landlord 

–  To have a good quality home and neighbourhood  

to live in

–  To be supported to take your first step to ownership

•  Building Safety legislation 

•  Review of Decent Homes standards to include access to 

and quality of green spaces and support for well-being

•  Planning legislation changes 

LOCAL CONTEXT 

• Refreshed Council Plan 2020–2025 priorities: 

–  Tackling the Climate Emergency and  

Creating a Greener District

–  Homes for all 

–  Living Well 

–  Your services, your voice 

• Local Plan 

• Housing Development Strategy 2021–2030

CONTEX T

P
age 31



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  4

This plan seeks to achieve the following overall outcomes: CHALLENGES

•  Land – new build development dependent on availability of sites  

•  New build cost and quality tension – high quality and low  
carbon add cost and challenge financial viability and raise long  
term affordability issues of cost of major works

•  Affordability for tenants of carbon efficient council housing

•  Disruption for tenants of retrofitting homes to be carbon efficient 

•  Impact of COVID-19 on design for external and internal spaces

•  Unknown impact on COVID-19 on household incomes and as 
a consequence security of tenure affecting future demand for 
temporary accommodation  

•  Demand for affordable housing (both private rental and ownership 
cost levels higher than regional and national averages)

•  Ageing population 

•  Meeting needs and aspirations of younger households 

•  Meeting compliance demands of building safety regime

•  Nitrate mitigation 

OUTCOMES AND CHALLENGES

OUTCOME 1
INCREASE THE SUPPLY OF NEW HOMES

OUTCOME 2
ALL HOMES ARE ENERGY EFFIC IENT AND  

AFFORDABLE TO RUN

OUTCOME 3
A HOUSING STOCK THAT MEETS THE 

CURRENT AND FUTURE NEEDS OF  

CL IENT GROUPS

OUTCOME 4
ALL HOMES COMPLY WITH THE DECENT 

HOMES STANDARD

OUTCOME 5
TENANTS FEEL SAFE IN THEIR HOMES  

AND KNOW HOW TO R AISE CONCERNS

P
age 32



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  5

 Built 241 new homes

 Completion of the award winning Chesil Lodge 

 Set up a Register of Sites with Development Potential 

  All ‘non-decent´ stock brought back in line with  
Decent Homes standard and 0% ‘non-decency’ maintained  
through annual Repairs Programme

  Implemented a five year cycle of external stock condition  
surveys of all assets 

  Sent out fire safety information to all residents of HRA blocks

  Developed a Strategy for improving the energy efficiency of  
HRA stock based on independent energy surveys 

  Commenced trial of system to improve carbon efficiency of  
non-traditional housing

  Delivered an Estate Improvement programme 

  Upgraded all sheltered housing communal spaces and installed Wi-Fi

  Converted sheltered previous resident scheme manager dwellings  
and communal facilities into additional units of accommodation

  Introduced new models of temporary and supported housing  
accommodation provision such as Housing First in partnership  
with other local providers.

HIGH LEVEL ACTION PL AN 2021–2023

YEAR ONE 

• Establish HRA Energy Forum 

• Disposal and Acquisition policy

• Housing Company

• Nitrate Mitigation 

YEAR T WO 

•  Sewage Treatment Works Asset Management 

Strategy

•  Temporary Accommodation Asset Management 

Strategy 

•  Options appraisal programme for `other assets’ 

(non dwelling)

• Older Persons housing accessibility upgrade  

•  Understand the long term heating options for 

existing stock 

YEAR THREE 

• Review HRA Asset Management Strategy 

• Extra care provision 

• Investigate sheltered shared ownership 

WHAT’S  BEEN ACHIEVED S INCE  ASSET  MANAGEMENT STR ATEGY 2017

P
age 33



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  6

AIM

HEALTHY HOMES – GOOD FOR 

PEOPLE AND THE PL ANET,  

THAT PEOPLE CAN AFFORD 

AND WANT TO L IVE IN 

•  To address the climate emergency by designing 

new homes to deliver as close to net zero carbon as 

possible 

•  To build beautiful, high quality, healthy and 

affordable homes to meet identified needs 

•  To create housing that people choose to live in and  

are proud to call home 

•  To ensure value for money and bench marked  

build costs 

The Housing Development Strategy 2021–30 sets out 

details and challenges.

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Build 1,000 new homes across the district between  

2021 and 2030

•  Identify a pipeline of sites which will include 

undertaking a strategic review of general fund  

and HRA land 

•  Commission site/asset appraisals when made 

aware of opportunities for development 

•  Feed in outcomes from Next Generation 

Winchester Project to Development Strategy and 

Local Plan 

•  Develop a coherent asset management and  

investment strategy for the sewage treatment  

works within the HRA

•  Disposal and Acquisitions – Refine policy to  

meet the council priorities and objective of the 

HRA AMS

•  Use the council assets to mitigate nitrates

INC REASE  THE  SUPPLY OF  NEW HOMES

OUTCOME 1

P
age 34



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  7

ALL  HOMES ARE  ENERGY EFF IC IENT 
AND AFFORDABLE  TO RUN 

OUTCOME 2

AIM

IMPROVE THE ENERGY EFFIC IENCY BY 

REDUCING ENERGY DEMAND AND 

SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCED CARBON 

EMISSIONS FROM COUNCIL HOMES 

•  Achieving net zero carbon from the 5000 dwellings will cost in 

excess £75m; programmes will be needed for the replacement of 

gas heating systems 

•  With each household producing an estimated 4-5 tonnes of 

carbon annually through electricity and/or gas consumption, 

very significant investment is needed to get close to ‘carbon 

neutral’ and will rely on Government funding as well as the 

decarbonisation of the national electricity grid through major 

national renewable energy programmes

•  An allocation of £15.7m between April 2021 – March 2031 within 

the Housing Revenue Account capital programme to fund 

measures to improve the energy efficiency of the council’s housing 

stock, help reduce energy demand overall and to significantly 

reduce carbon emissions from council homes

•  A number of trials are currently being funded by Government 

grant to identify how best to invest the £3.8billion the 

Government has allocated for this work

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Invest £1.6m in annual programme focussing on 

improving energy efficiency through additional 

insulation measures (a ‘fabric first’ approach).

•  Understand the options available along with their 

advantages and disadvantages 

•  Establish an officer/member/tenant panel/forum 

to assess progress with national trials, review 

funding options and bring forward proposals for 

a long-term programme to replace gas heating 

systems in council homes

•  Delivery of tenant awareness and information 

programmes

•  Progress sheltered communal areas re-fit project

•  Change New Homes Employers Requirements to 

reflect how new homes are going to be heated 

post 2025

P
age 35



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  8

A HOUSING STOCK THAT MEETS 
CURRENT AND FUTURE HOUSING NEEDS 
OLDER PERSONS HOUSING 

OUTCOME 3

AIM

PROVIDE AN APPROPRIATE R ANGE AND 

CHOICE OF HOUSING OPTIONS  

FOR OLDER PEOPLE 

•  The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), published in 

February 2020 presents evidence that an extra care provision will be 

required in the southern parishes

•  It’s recognised that many want to remain in the homes they have 

lived in for many years. Some will need adaptations to do so

•  Balance the risk of promoting under-occupation and fuelling an 

increasing demand for major adaptations that could be avoided if 

more households opt to move to smaller accommodation. Current 

data suggest that over 900 HRA units are under-occupied

•  Despite fluctuating demand for some sheltered housing, there 

is insufficient evidence to support any immediate steps towards 

either disposal or decommissioning

•  In the longer term, a surplus of rented sheltered  

housing and a shortfall in leasehold sheltered housing  

is anticipated

•  Opportunities may arise to decommission some of the less popular 

rented sheltered schemes, with a view to either disposing as is, or 

remodelling to permit marketing as leasehold/shared ownership 

sheltered housing to address the expected shortfall

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Work with Hampshire County Council to identify 

opportunities for an extra care scheme in the  

southern parishes and Winchester 

•  Digital inclusion – promote the service and  

provide training to maximise the uptake of Wi-Fi 

in sheltered housing

•  Investigate the viability of a scheme that meets  

the needs of older people with mental health 

needs

•  Consider how to meet the demand for leasehold 

sheltered  

•  Continue to invest in disabled adaptations 

•  Invest in sheltered housing upgrades to  

improve accessibility 

P
age 36



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  9

A HOUSING STOCK THAT 
MEETS  CURRENT AND 
FUTURE HOUSING NEEDS 
TEMPOR ARY 
ACCOMMODATION

OUTCOME 3

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Review provision and look to options within  

HRA assets to best meet temporary 

accommodation needs

•  Review provision at all sites 

•  Compile a profile of users and needs 

•  Consider impact of COVID-19 on demand and  

economic stability 

•  Develop a coherent asset management and 

investment strategy for the temporary 

accommodation within the HRA 

AIM

DEVELOP A TEMPOR ARY  

ACCOMMODATION PORTFOLIO THAT  

IS APPROPRIATE FOR THOSE WHO  

REQUIRE SHORT TERM SOLUTIONS  

TO ENABLE THE SERVICE TO PREPARE CLIENTS FOR 

PERMANENT HOUSING 

•  Temporary accommodation is provided as an option for  

homeless households

•  The objective is to support households to maintain tenancies and 

move-on to suitable housing options

•  The suitability of the temporary accommodation portfolio 

especially in terms of family provision and shared areas is the 

focus of the review

•  Provision should reflect the profile of demand and objectives of 

short term accommodation

Interim image while update being arranged

Interim image while update being arranged

P
age 37



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  10

ALL  HOMES COMPLY WITH THE 
DECENT HOMES STANDARD 

OUTCOME 4

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Maintain and refine asset 

management  

information systems i.e. Keystone 

database 

•  Deliver an annual maintenance 

programme 

•  Continue to invest in the Estate 

Improvement programme 

AIM

0% OF NON-DECENT HOMES 

OWNED BY THE COUNCIL 

•  All ‘non-decent´ stock brought back in line with  

Decent Homes standard and 0% ‘non-decency’ maintained 

through annual Major Works Programme

•  The Government Nov 2020 white paper ‘A charter for social 

housing residents’ requires review of Decent Homes standards 

to include access to and quality of green spaces and support 

for well-being

•  Remodel of capital programmes will be required in response 

to the proposed changes to the standard contained within the 

white paper 

P
age 38



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  11

TENANTS FEEL  SAFE  IN 
THE IR  HOMES AND KNOW 
HOW TO R AISE  CONCERNS

OUTCOME 5

TO ACHIEVE THIS WE WILL 

•  Project Group set up to 

– Prepare for Building a Safer Future regime 

–  Respond to further national building safety 

announcements

•  Focus on Winnall flats as only HRA site within 

scope of Building safer future regime

•  Focus on improvements to compartmentation  

through door replacement programme

AIM

COMPLIANCE WITH BUILDING  

A SAFER FUTURE REGIME 

REQUIREMENTS 

•  The outcome of a comprehensive review of fire safety 

management was completed and reported to Cabinet  

in June 2020

•  The review incorporated engagement with residents through a 

variety of platforms

•  A Fire safety management plan has been developed which 

supports the refreshed fire safety policy and is monitored by the 

Fire Safety Management Group 

•  Future compliance requirements will be taken forward by a 

Building a Safer Future Project Group

Interim image while update being arrangedP
age 39



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  12

The council has long since had a strong legacy of robust 

tenant engagement. A spectrum of activities are used to 

help understand what’s important to our residents and 

their priorities for service delivery and improvement. 

This strategy has been developed in conjunction with our 

residents as set out below and we will continue to use 

a variety of approaches to ensure all residents have the 

opportunity to tell us their views.

ASSET MANAGEMENT RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT ACTIVIT IES  

•  Joint Councillor and involved tenant Workshop – 3 March 2020

•  Asset Management Briefing – November 2020

•  Digital survey – Carbon efficient Housing – October 2020

•  Fire Safety Project – engagement activities – focus groups,  
surveys, invited to join task group discussion

•  Older Persons housing engagement activities following on from  
scrutiny exercise – meetings and surveys

•  Service Delivery Groups for Repairs and Maintenance meeting  
on carbon plans and fire safety measures

•  TACT Meetings – Development Strategy, Private Sector  
Renewal Strategy – September 2020 

•  Tenant Satisfaction Surveys – tenants service priorities 

•  Next Generation survey – February 2021

TENANT INVOLVEMENT AND CONSULTAT ION

‘ Xxxx.’ 
Chairs of TACT and RM SDG

P
age 40



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  13

SERVICE TEAMS  

Asset Management Group

The Asset Management Group, chaired by the  

Corporate Head of Housing  with representatives from  

key housing teams, meet quarterly to evaluate assets  

in accordance with the agreed priorities and to address 

the emerging issues.  

The outcome of the evaluation process will be to 

determine the most effective future use of the asset. 

Options include:

•  Re-invest and retain – if it can be demonstrated that  

loss of income can be prevented through investment

•  Redevelopment/conversion required 

•  Change of use

•  Disposal 

•  Rent review 

•  Watching brief – Asset flagged on database and/or 

Potential Development list

•  Alternative action 

TENANT VOICE  

Service Delivery Groups for Repairs and  

Maintenance and Housing Management 

Meet quarterly to review, scrutinise and challenge 

performance in a number of key housing service areas. 

Carbon Efficient Housing Forum 

A member/tenant/officer panel/forum is to be established 

to assess progress with national trials, review funding 

options and bring forward proposals for a long term 

programme to replace gas heating systems in council 

homes, subject to consultation with tenants and the 

Business and Housing Policy Committee. 

TACT

TACT is the formal tenant group which links in with the 

council’s governance structure. Their role is at strategic 

level as opposed to the level of operational detail. 

Strategy development, new and amended policies, 

and service priorities are presented to this group not 

only for their view but to ensure that the council has 

considered the views of a wide range and where possible 

representative tenant voice.

The Strategy provides the framework to support the 

evaluation of the HRA assets that delivers commitments 

made in the HRA business plan, and provides well 

maintained homes which the tenants judge to be good, 

and which compare well with those provided by the  

best social landlords.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

•  Number of New homes – target 1000 in 10 years 

•  Energy ratings – aiming for the council’s stock to be 

carbon neutral by 2030 and all council properties to be 

EPC Band C or above by 2030  

•  Tenant satisfaction with quality of home in top quartile

•  Sheltered tenant satisfaction with ease of access  

top quartile 

•  0% of stock non Decent

•  Resident satisfaction with the council providing a home 

that is safe and secure in top quartile

MONITORING AND REV IEW

P
age 41



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  14

WCC HR A STOCK  

Please note actual stock numbers change due to sales 

through right to buy and new units available through 

the new homes development programme, disposal and 

acquisition and are rounded up or down. 

• Residential Properties 

– 5,000 tenancies (approximately)

– 400 leaseholders (approximately)

– 12 sheltered schemes

– Three extra care schemes 

•  Garages – 200 (approximately) of council owned  

garages are designated to the HRA 

• Land – over 100 sites plotted out in HRA Land Register 

• Leased premises – 12 properties 

• Non-operational – various 

•  Community Assets including 40 sewage  

treatment works

•  Temporary Accommodation – various

The majority of flats (54%) are in low-rise blocks (up to 

three storeys in height). Non-traditional construction 

represents about 3% of the stock.

APPENDIX  1

STOCK OF T YPE

Property Type Number of units % of stock 

Bedsits 73 1.5%

Flats 1810 36%

Hostel (rooms, bedsits,  
flats and houses)

66 1%

Maisonettes 50 1%

Bungalows 834 16.5%

Houses 2250 44%

Total 5083 100%

SOURCE: KEYSTONE 31/3/2021 

P
age 42



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  15

DEMAND  

The housing register provides information on the types 

of affordable housing demanded by households. In April 

2021 there were over 1,400 households on the council’s 

Housing Register seeking rented housing. Of those, 

224 have an urgent or high need to move. The highest 

demand is for one bedroom accommodation accounting 

for over 65% of those on the register.

4-bed needs are so small that development can be 

targeted to meet specific needs.

APPLICANTS BY BANDING AND  

BEDROOM NEED

Banding Percentage

1 ‹ 0.99%

2 15%

3 75%

4 10%

Assessed bedroom need

1 65%

2 22%

3 10%

4+ 3%

Application type

General 74%

Transfer 26%

SOURCE: HAMPSHIRE HOME CHOICE ANNUAL REPORT APRIL 2021 

APPENDIX  2

STOCK BY SIZE 

Size Number of units % of stock 

Bedsits and rooms 121 2%

1 bed property 1658 33%

2 bed property 1691 33%

3 bed property 1543 31%

4 bed property 68 1%

5 bed property 1 ‹ 1%

6 bed property 1 ‹ 1%

Total 5083 100%

SOURCE: KEYSTONE 31/3/2021 

SPECIALIST SUPPORTED HOUSING 

Type 
Number 

of schemes

Number  

of units 

Sheltered 12 410

Bungalow/over 60s schemes 14 286

Extra care 3 108

Supported Living for those 

with Learning disabilities 

1 15

Temporary Accommodation – 

HRA owned and managed 

5 60

AVER AGE WAITING TIMES 

Band 2 Band 3

1 bed 1 yr 2 mnth 3 yr 7 mnth

2 bed flat 8 mnth 1 yr 7 mnth 

2 bed house 1 yr 7 mnth 4 yr 1 mnth 

3 bed 1 yr 2 mnth 3 yr 10 mnth

4 bed 10 mnth 1 yr 3 mnth

Accommodation for those 

of 60 years +

10 mnth 1 yr 2 mnth

SOURCE: HAMPSHIRE HOME CHOICE ANNUAL REPORT APRIL 2021 

P
age 43



HRA Asset Management Strategy 2021  |  16

INVESTMENT PROGR AMMES  

30 Year HRA Business Plan

The 30 year HRA business plan contains the following 

allocations of capital investment funding broken down by 

Investment Area and at Outturn Prices.

HR A STOCK ENERGY PERFORMANCE   

The WCC stock average SAP rating of 69 is on a par with 

the national average of 69 for the social rented sector. 

This compares well to the average of 64 for owner-

occupied and privately rented domestic dwellings and to 

the average SAP rating of 65 for all English dwellings1. 

99% of the Council’s housing stock has a rating of D or 

above (61% C or above).

STOCK OF T YPE

Investment Area Amount £m Percentage 

Planned 253 29%

Improvements 1 0%

Disabled Adaptations 36 4%

Estate Improvements 4 0%

Sewage Treatment Works 5 1%

Fire Precautions 2 0%

Climate Change 14 2%

Other 11 1%

Major Works 39 4%

New Build 500 58%

Total Investment 862 100%

SOURCE: KEYSTONE 31/3/2021 

APPENDIX  3

1 Source: English Housing Survey, Headline Report 2019–20 (latest available report at April 2021, published 17 December 2020 via .Gov)

P
age 44



P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

BHP023 
BUSINESS AND HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE  

 
 

REPORT TITLE: WINCHESTER DISTRICT HIGH STREETS’ PRIORITY PLAN – 
UP-DATE AND PROGRESS REPORT 
 
30 NOVEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Tod, Cabinet Member for Economic 
Recovery  

Contact Officer:  Susan Robbins    Tel No: 01962 848 461 Email 
srobbins@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

At its June meeting the Policy Committee’s reviewed the Winchester District High 
Streets Priority Plan and provided feedback on its content and purpose. 

This report provides the Policy Committee with an up-dated High Streets Priority 
Plan that incorporates the feedback given (see appendix 1) and a progress report on 
its delivery (see appendix 2) along with data on outcome measures. 

It also sets out a forward plan of activity to be delivered under the Plan to March 
2022. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Policy committee are asked to:  

1. Note the up-dated Winchester District High Streets Priority Plan. 

2. Note the progress made on project delivery to date.  

3. Make comments and provide direction on the proposed forward plan of work 

to March 2022. 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



 2 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

 
1 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  

1.1 The Winchester District High Streets Priority Plan is being delivered by the 
Economy & Community Service teams, with staff resources deployed from 
Economy, Tourism and Community. 

1.2 The delivery of a number of the projects identified in the Plan has been made 
possible by aligning this activity to that of the funding the council received 
under the Government and ERDF programmes;  

a) Reopening High Street Safely (RHSS) - £110,972 from June 2020 to 
March 2021 the extend to July 2021; 

b) Welcome Back Fund (WBF) – £110,971 from April 2021 to March 
2022.   

1.3 The council has grant agreements for the use of these funds that set out the 
eligible expenditure and outcome measures.   The plans for these funds were 
developed in consultation with Winchester BID and representatives from the 
market towns including ward members, town / parish councils and local trade 
associations and chambers of commerce. We continue to work with these 
representatives on the implementation of the projects. 

1.4 The WBF enabled the council to appoint a temporary project officer to co-
ordinate activity, liaise with partners and support the programme management 
and monitoring. 

1.5 All contracts are being managed in accordance with the council’s contract 
management  framework in order to maximise the opportunities presented 
and grant funding provided. 

2 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

2.1 Background 

2.2 The Policy Committee considered the Winchester District High Street Plan 
2021-22 at its June meeting.  The Plan has been developed as a short term 
tactical plan to “reinvigorate our District’s high streets post COVID-19, to 
support our businesses to reopen and innovate and to enable people to enjoy 
social and cultural experiences again.” 

2.3 Matters raised by the Committee were:   

a) Council to engage with the landlord on the former Debenhams site’s 
concerning its future use and potential for meanwhile uses such as an 
indoor market.   

b) the Winchester Town Forum informal group that considers the High 
Street should also be asked to also consider the role of markets 

Page 48



 3 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

c) the role of advertising and branding in promoting the districts’ high 
streets 

d) the Priority Plan should include rural towns and the wider district rather 
than focus on Winchester High Street.  

2.4 The Plan has been up-dated to include a more detailed section on the role of 
the market town high streets within the district and the revised Plan is 
attached as Appendix 1.  The other matters arising are addressed in the 
following progress report on project delivery. 

3 Progress Report  

3.1 The District High Streets Priority Plan included an action plan that identified 
specific actions and projects that would be delivered in 2021-22.  A detailed 
progress report on the actions included in given in Appendix 2.  The following 
is a summary drawing out some of the highlights from what has been 
achieved in the first six months. 

3.2 Completed activity Q1 & Q2 

3.3 Business support 

ShopAppy - e-commerce platform has 
been launched offering an additional 
marketing channel for independent 
businesses and consumers.  Over 150 
businesses registered offering over 7000 
products and services for purchase.  
Transaction figures will be available in 
January 2022. 

  

Business Support programme –   
Digital Islands were contracted to 
provide a COVID-19 business 
information and guidance service 
between January and extended to 
August 2021. 

 178 people registered for on line 
support on the website. 
https://highstreet.winchester.gov.uk/ 

 133 businesses have attended one or 
more group support events, webinars 
or masterclasses.  

 54 businesses have booked one to 
one sessions with a business advisor 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49

https://highstreet.winchester.gov.uk/


 4 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

3.4 Public Realm 

Buskett Yard – improving the aesthetics 
of the area within Buskett Lane, Buskett 
Yard and the Bus Station by painting the 
tarmac, putting up bunting and placing 
planters/seating within the area. 
 

 
 

 

The Square – weekend closures to 
through traffic and new signs installed.  

 

3.5 Promotion and Campaigns  

5 Things to do this week/weekend 

Launched beginning of October. 4 short 
videos to date combined Facebook 
reach: 1,105 

  

New Trails 

Tree trail - Winchester is home to an 
abundance of trees. A guide to over 20 
species that provide us with beauty and 
shade in the city centre – from the 
Common Beech to the Japanese Cedar 
tree. 

Visit Winchester website views: 366 
Trail views via new digital trails platform: 
541 (20 Sept – 9 Nov) 

 

Page 50



 5 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

Summer campaigns 

Digital content (blogs, B2C e-newsletters 

and VW social media channels) 

included:  

 Summer holidays in Winchester 

 Top 10 Green spaces to explore 

in Winchester this summer.  

 Festivals – Heritage Open Days 

 

Ave open rate: 28.2% 

Ave Click rate: 4.3%  

Shop local  

Made in Winchester and Shop Appy 

blogs (also promoted via VW social 

media channels) along with competition 

to win a hamper of local produce – over 

1,100 entries. 

 

 

 

 

Rediscover Campaign at River Park 
Leisure Centre 

 

 
 
Knitted King Alf Trail by Playmakers 
 
Trail promoted via Visit Winchester 
channels April to July 2021 to encourage 
people to visit shops to take photos of 
the Knitted King Alfs on display. VW 
worked with Market Towns and knitted 
King Alfs made their way into 
Independents across our Market Towns. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 6 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

3.6 Forward Plan projects Q3 and Q4 
 

3.7 Over the past six months work has commenced on a number projects that are 
still being developed, designed and procured for delivery in the next period to 
end March 2022.  In summary this includes: 

3.8 Business Support 
a) Continue to promote e-commerce platform Shop Appy to increase 

businesses signed up and customer take and use.  

3.9 Public Realm 
a) Install planters for Parchment Street to replace the highway barriers 
b) Busket Yard phase 2 – potential bunting and umbrellas to dress the 

space and ways to activate it with events and performances 
c) Procurement of window dressing/wraps for Debenhams.  
d) Projects being scoped and costed for the market town high streets are 

weed clearing, replacement waste bins and temporary planter projects. 
 
3.10 Promotions and Campaigns 

a) Major focus on Christmas in Winchester and promotion of events, 
attractions, shops and things to do. 

b) Market towns maps, a joint market towns guide, and a district wide 
“Welcome Back” inspirational based publication.   

c) Procurement for a city Lights Festival in February has commenced. 
 
3.11 Two research projects are being procured to review the street markets offer 

and the festivals and events offer across the district which will inform future 
activities and priorities.   The Town Forum informal City Centre Group will be 
included in the work on the street markets.  

4 Outcomes monitoring 

4.1 In order to measure the success of the Plan and its delivery a set of indicators 
where identified for quarterly monitoring with full review at the end of the plan 
period.  

4.2 Footfall 

4.3 City Centre footfall data is collected by Winchester BID.  Chart 1 shows that 
that the average week footfall counts has remained relatively steady over the 
past five months (comparable data not available for September) but has risen 
in October to a weekly average footfall count of 29,319.  Post COVID -19 
restrictions in March 2020 the level of footfall was far less however grew 
steadily.    In January 2020 pre-COVID-19 weekly footfall counts averaged 
25,882. 

 
 
 
Chart 1. Average weekly footfall counts 2021 compared to 2020 

 

Page 52



 7 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

 
 
 
4.4 Vacancy rates 

4.5 City centre vacancy rates are provided by the Winchester Business 
Barometer produced by Prof. Kind.  In mid-October, the city centre vacancy 
rate was 10.3% which is a slight fall from the January 2021 figure of 11.2%. In 
early 2020, pre- pandemic, the vacancy rate was 6.9%.  The national figure is 
14.5% (Retail Gazette [19 August 2021]).  
 

4.6 Business closures / openings 

4.7 In the market towns we are aware of three business closures; two in Wickham 
and one in Bishops Waltham.  In the city centre there have been nine closures 
and 13 new openings.  Additionally some stores have moved premises for 
example Mountain Warehouse and Jigsaw. 

 
4.8 City Centre WIFI use 

4.9 The city WIFI launched in September 2020 and after an opening peak of 412 
average monthly visits it steadily declined to around 100 per month until 
March 2021 when average monthly visit started to increase.  The overall trend 
is of a steady increase over the past six months.   

 
Chart 2. City WIFI Total Monthly average visits Q1 & Q2 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

April May June July August October

Winchester City Centre Footfall Counts 

Weekly average 2021 Weekly average 2020

Page 53



 8 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

 
 

 
4.10 Car parking use  
 
Table 1. District Car Park Use  

Location  Sep-19 Sep-20 Apr-21 Jul-21 Sep-21 

Alresford 5,498 4,319  4,181  7,045  6,437  

Bishops Waltham 4,768 3,308  2,885  4,345  4,982  

City*  428,551 284,022  233,969  386,802  448,810  

Wickham 4,252 3,674  1,983  4,505  3,029  

 
* The city car parks includes all car parks in city, park and ride and pay and display on street 
parking, but not residents permits. 
 

Chart 3. Trend in Car Park Use in Market Towns Pre; during and post COVID-19 
restrictions 

 
 

 
4.11 Marketing response rates and reach 

 
4.12 Shop Local - Related Facebook and Instagram posts had a combined reach 

of over 6.1k and over 6.7k impressions on Twitter. Facebook ad secured a 
reach of 13,000. 

 
 
 
5 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

5.1 The Policy Committee report in June 2021 identified options considered and 
rejected in relation to the High Streets Priority Plan.  This is an up-date and 
progress report so no additional options have been considered at this time.     

 

5
,4

9
8

 

4
,7

6
8

 

4
,2

5
2

 

4
,3

1
9

 

3
,3

0
8

 

3
,6

7
4

 

4
,1

8
1

 

2
,8

8
5

 

1
,9

8
3

 

7
,0

4
5

 

4
,3

4
5

 

4
,5

0
5

 

6
,4

3
7

 

4
,9

8
2

 

3
,0

2
9

 
A L R E S F O R D  B I S H O P S  W A L T H A M  W I C K H A M  

Sep-19 Sep-20 Apr-21 Jul-21 Sep-21

Page 54



 9 [BHP023] 
 

 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

BHP018  22 JUNE 2021 WINCHESTER DISTRICT HIGH STREETS’ PRIORITY 

PLAN 2021/22 22  

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s15764/BHP018%20High%20Stree
ts%20Priority%20Plan%20FINAL.pdf 

 

Other Background Documents:- 

Reopening High Streets Safely Grant Action Plan, 17th July 2020, Revised 10th 
November 2020. 

Welcome Back Fund New Activity Form, 28 May 2021 

Winchester BID Business Barometer 40th Edition January to September 2021, 19th 
October 2021 

winchester business barometer - Google Drive 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1. Winchester District High Streets Priority Plan – revised Sept 2021 

Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report 

 

Page 55

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s15764/BHP018%20High%20Streets%20Priority%20Plan%20FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s15764/BHP018%20High%20Streets%20Priority%20Plan%20FINAL.pdf
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/0BwxF5vI2Th7fSGxiczJ3QnRGcnc?resourcekey=0-jk-aMh9jtGX4kq8szlDaKw&form=MY01SV&OCID=MY01SV


This page is intentionally left blank



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

1 
 

 
Winchester District  
High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
 
Revised final Sept 2021 

 
 

 
A tactical one-year plan to reinvigorate our District’s high streets post COVID-
19, to support our businesses to reopen and innovate and to enable people to 

enjoy social and cultural experiences again. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 57



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

2 
 

The need for a Winchester District High Streets’ Priority Plan 
 
Over the past year we have all had to respond to, and cope with, the extraordinary times 
and challenges the COVID-19 pandemic has brought about.  The social and travel 
restrictions, coupled with businesses being required to close to in-person services have 
particularly impacted our retail, hospitality, leisure and cultural sector.  This sector is a major 
element of our economy accounting for nearly 28% of employee jobs1 and making up 25% 
of our enterprise2.  These businesses, attractions, events and festivals also make 
Winchester District a cultural hub and our city and market towns interesting and vibrant 
places to visit and spend time. 
 
The impact of the past year has seen headline news about major business closures – 
Debenhams, Laura Ashley – and whilst these were already facing difficulties from changing 
retail needs and demands, COVID-19 has accelerated and compounded these problems.  
The “future of the high street” was a topic of debate before 2020, with many including 
government recognising the need to reimagine our high streets.  The High Streets Task 
Force and government’s Town Fund were established for this very reason. 
 
The need, therefore, to develop a tactical plan to ensure Winchester district’s high streets 
are vibrant places where people want to come to has never been more pressing.  The city 
council takes these challenges seriously and will lead and collaborate with others to 
reinvigorate our places for everyone to enjoy and where our businesses are resilient and 
prospering. We will adopt a partnership approach with stakeholders, businesses and 
residents to help in the implementation of this plan. 
 
It is important to debate and discuss the changes that are happening and those we wish to 
plan in order for our high streets and centres to remain vibrant, exciting places.  Change is 
difficult but there is clear support for working together to be prepared and ahead of the 
game.  Post COVID-19 the focus need to be on enablement and speed; seize the changes 
and act and be competitive.  The challenge will be the ability to get it all done in the year…. 
 
 
 
  

                                            
1
 Source NOMIS: Employee Jobs 2021 

2
 Source ONS: UK BUSINESS: ACTIVITY, SIZE AND LOCATION - 2020 

Page 58



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

3 
 

The Priority Plan Framework 
 
Our objectives are to: 

 Build on our high streets’ brand and build confidence. 

 Create better connections between residents and their local centres. 

 Strengthen the connection between organisations, businesses and events to create a 
whole town experience for the benefit of all. 

 Make more of our places as social and community hubs. 

 Celebrate what we have and our new successes - independent retail, festivals, events, 
attractions, creative and cultural venues. 

 Foster business resilience so that our high street businesses survive, capitalise on 
change, grow and prosper. 

 
We will do this by using the levers available to us: 

 Lead – be responsible for the things we have control over, recognising we will need 
others to help achieve these. 

 Enable – help and support others to deliver through funding, regulation, planning.   

 Influence – create a shared agenda with partners working to common goals. 

 Complement – generate added value by aligning programmes and activities with each 
other. 

 
The success of the work in meeting these objectives will be judged on how well our high 
streets recover.  So, action will need to:   
 

 Bring footfall and unit vacancy rates back to where they were before. 

 Increase spend and lengthen dwell time. 

 Create a compelling reason for people to come today. 

 Strengthen reasons to return. 
 
Specific performance indicators that will be monitored and reviewed quarterly (where data is 
available) with a full report of impacts and outcomes at the end of the programme in April 
2022.  They are: 

 Footfall 

 Vacancy rates 

 Business closures / openings 

 City Centre WIFI use 

 Car parking use 

 Marketing response rates and reach 
 
  

Page 59



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

4 
 

Our High Streets 
 

Winchester city  

Winchester city centre is an important hub for not only city residents but for the district and 
beyond. The concentration of businesses, services, retail, leisure and cultural uses attracts 
residents, visitors and workers from across Hampshire. 
 
The retail mix is supported by a strong presence of independent shops that offer a different 
and quality experience over the national chains. Winchester city has around 100 food and 
drink outlets and 180 retail outlets.  In total there are just over 700 businesses in the BID 
area. 

There are a number of key leisure and entertainment venues including museums, theatres, 
cinema, escape rooms, and significant historic buildings and attractions. These are 
enhanced by the varied cultural and sporting events and festivals that take place annually.    

 
A visitor survey in 2019, of which 65% of respondents were visitors, showed the 
predominant reason for visiting Winchester was leisure (86%), shopping (61%) and visiting 
a restaurant or café (49%).  
 
The Council’s 2019 residents’ survey found that nearly 50% of respondents visited the city 
centre at least every week. The main reasons for visiting were retail (70%), to visit a café or 
restaurant (52%), food shopping (43%) and just a trip out (42%). Asked what would make 
them visit more 28% said better selection of retail and 17% availability of car parking. 
 
 

District centres and market town high streets 

The market towns of Alresford, Bishop’s Waltham, Wickham and Denmead, are important 
hubs for their communities offering quality, specialist convenience and services.  These 
high streets rely on local residents and visitors enjoying their historic and rural qualities for 
footfall and trade.   

Alresford, Wickham and Bishop’s Waltham are visitor destinations. Their historical market 
town centres and high streets have strong food and drink offers coupled with small 
independents retailers serving local residents and attracting those from neighbouring towns 
and villages.  Some also have events and festivals that bring visitors and build a brand 
identity.  Others have clusters of special retailers, such as antiques and restored furniture in 
Wickham which has attracted TV features. 

Due to the historic assets in these towns that depict the rural charm of the Hampshire 
countryside, these district centres and high streets need to continue to promote themselves 
as destination for a unique experience of independent retail and food and drink offers with 
easy access to the countryside. 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

5 
 

Wickham 

Wickham has a mixture of independent retailers and food and drink outlets, with four cafes, 
and three pubs, there are also three retail outlets (Cheesepeake Mill, Bay Tree Walk and 
Warwick Lane) specialising in antiques. 

Wickham also hosts large events such as Taste of Wickham and the Wickham Festival. 

Alresford  

The town centre has lots of independent retail shops, with a selection of high end fashion 
and gift shops. The town also has a selection of restaurants and hotels, including a Michelin 
recommended restaurant, Pulpo Negro. The Watercress Line at Alresford train station is a 
popular tourist attraction and has over 120,000 visitors per annum.  

Alresford also hosts some popular events including the Watercress Festival, Alresford 
music festival and a renowned agricultural show. The Alresford Millennium and Alre Valley 
Trail is a self-guided trail that links together footpaths around the town and along the river 
with illustrated information boards introducing the history of Alresford, its inhabitants, 
railway line, wildlife and rural surrounds.  

Bishop’s Waltham 

Bishop’s Waltham is a historic market town with a busy high street of independent shops 
and it also boasts a large English Heritage site at Bishop’s Waltham Palace close to the 
town centre. Is also has 11 places offering food and drink and two businesses offering 
accommodation. The town is also in close proximity to Marwell Zoo, with over 500,000 
visitors per year. 

Denmead 

Denmead village centre consists of 26 small independent businesses in a small parade of 
shops. It is a popular convenience shopping for local residents and passing residents from 
neighbouring areas.  There are also five country pubs in the area.  

Whiteley 

Whiteley Shopping Village pre-pandemic attracted 6 million visitors a year and historically 
has low vacancy rates. The shopping centre includes high street fashion stores and a 
selection of restaurants, cafes and a cinema. The centre also offers trails, competitions and 
displays at key points throughout the year to attract families.  

 
 
Foundations are already in place - Working together 
 
The council, parish and town councils, chambers of commerce, partnerships and 
businesses have focused their efforts on ensuring people can continue to shop and use our 
high streets.  A sense of collaboration and partnership has emerged, as is often the case in 
the face of adversity, which creates a strong foundation from which to build, united in our 
desire to see our high streets return to what they were.   
 
New partnerships have formed with people and organisations coming together to support 
our places and businesses and this leadership and collaboration needs to be sustained as 
a legacy and positive outcome from the past year. 
 

Page 61



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

6 
 

 
The local response to COVID-19 creates a springboard for future growth and change.  The 
following are just a few of the initiatives that demonstrate this strong foundation. 
 
 
Retail and hospitality businesses have adapted and flexed their ways of working – 
creating online services, click and collect and take away services for both customers but 
also those in need within their local communities.   
 

New business models 
 

This small family-run butchers saw a significant increase in 
demand once restrictions were introduced.  The business offered 
a free local telephone delivery service with no minimum order, and 
utilised their Facebook page to promote this option. This led to 
over 50 orders on the first day.  Over this time, the business has 
tripled its weekly turnover and significantly expanded their 

customer base. Many customers are now doing weekly orders and they hope these new 
shopping habits will continue with the introduction of a new e-commerce website.  
 

 
Attractions have created virtual experiences to enable people to remain connected to 
culture.  
 

Virtual Winchester https://www.visitwinchester.co.uk/virtualwinchester/ 
 
Marwell and Play to the Crowd 

  
 

 
The council secured funding to create safe places and support local businesses with 
social distancing signs and pavement demarcations, installing 21 hand sanitiser stations 
installed in locations across the city and market towns, deploying COVID Marshalls and 
Ambassadors and helping businesses through grant payments worth £34.6m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62

https://www.visitwinchester.co.uk/virtualwinchester/


Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

7 
 

High Streets' 
Priority Plan 

Carbon 
Neutrality 

Action Plan 

Winchester 
District Local 

Plan  

Green 
Economic 

Development 
Strategy 

Winchester 
Movement 

Strategy 

Winchester 
Town Vision 

Destination 
Management 

PLan 

Support local and shop online:  https://www.visitwinchester.co.uk/support-local/ 
 

 
 

 
 
What more can be done 
 
This is one-year tactical plan captures the actions that focus all our efforts on supporting the 
district’s high streets at this critical moment and as the government implements its four step 
roadmap to easing lockdown restrictions.  
 
This plan will form part of the longer-term strategic work that 
was in early stages of development before 2020. This 
includes the 10-year Winchester District Green Economic 
Development Strategy, the Winchester Movement Strategy 
and five-year Destination Management Plan.   
 
 
It will set the groundwork and future building blocks for the 
longer-term transformation of our high streets, cultural offer 
and visitor economy across the district.  Now is the time to 
be proactive and influence the change we want to see.   
 
 
We recognise there are some sections of our retail, hospitality, leisure and cultural sector 
that have the potential to attract more people from under-represented audiences, enhance 
the visitor experience and contribute more to our economy.  However, they require strategic 
and coordinated development in order to realise this potential.  In this year ahead it is 
recommended that work starts on three specific opportunities: 
 
1. Explore what is needed to build a strong, vibrant night-time economy and how can we 

achieve this.  
2. Develop a cultural manifesto with key partners such as Play to the Crowd and 

Hampshire Cultural Trust, Winchester School of Art and others. 
3. Review our street markets so their value and benefit is fully realised and offer a quality 

experience. 
 
It is important to acknowledge there is much activity and many stakeholders and partners 
working to support businesses and high streets.  We must be alert to the fact we may need 
to focus on a key footfall driver, and to do one thing that generates a significant level of 
excitement and profile, and not disperse energies across too many small projects. 

Page 63

https://www.visitwinchester.co.uk/support-local/


Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

8 
 

 
Change is already happening 
 
There has been much commentary on the changes to working practices and people’s 
shopping and socialising habits and how this will impact on the urban centres and high 
street once restrictions are lifted.  Many leading property and development companies have 
issued research and opinion on the type, extent and duration of these changes, for example  
KPMG “The future of towns and cities post COVID-19”; Lambert Smith Hampton and Revo 
“What next for our towns, high streets, and shopping centres?” and Savills RE:IMAGINING 
RETAIL publications. 
 
Common themes emerge from these reviews and market analysis as vital ingredients for 
successful high streets and towns centre in the future. 
 

 Community and social hubs 

 A diverse mix of uses  

 Flexible space that can be 
used for different purposes 

 Re-populating urban centres 
 
 

 
Extract from Lambert Smith 
Hampton and Revo report: 

 
 

 
The council’s own research “Winchester District’s Retail, Leisure and Town Centre Uses 
Study”, undertaken by LSH in August 2020 as part of the evidence base for the new Local 
Plan, proposed in its conclusions that the local plan policies or a town centre strategy 
should include the reuse of vacant upper floors, have a flexible approach to uses to enable 
resilience and the ability to respond to future changes and trends.  It noted that there is also 
potential to promote the night time economy to encourage people to stay longer, for 
example through an evening food market and events for young people.  Also, that a role 
should be created that encourages retailers and landlords to work together. 
 
The Winchester District Green Economic Development Strategy will set a longer-term 
framework to capitalise on a green recovery building on the work of the past year.  The 
Vision for Winchester was created, through extensive participation from local residents, 
creating a proposition that change will be as a consequence of many small wins that are 
owned by the local community. 
  

Page 64



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

9 
 

Our Objectives 
 

Build on our high streets’ brand and build confidence 

 
There needs to be a concerted effort to build more strongly, effectively and collaboratively 
the profile of the city and market towns to present a compelling offer with different and 
unique experiences.  These could perhaps be ones not expected in historic centres or that 
have not been seen before; encouraging people to return to high streets will be a challenge 
and so we have to give good reasons to visit. 
 
Now is the time to seize change, adapting and expanding the breadth of our offer, putting in 
place new attractors that will interest and excite a wider audience. We want our high streets 
to be used and enjoyed by: 

 families,  

 young people, 

 local residents, 

 daytime workforce,  

 home workers,  

 visitors (regional to international). 
 
This presents a real opportunity to showcase the character and identity of our different high 
streets and district centres, playing to our strengths but increasing the leverage we can gain 
from our brand.  We also need to understand the extent of our virtual presence and online 
footprint and how effectively we are outreaching. 
 
Suggested approaches, especially in the market towns include: 

 Promoting trails and unique character  

 Group travel – familiarisation and actual group visits.   

 Cycling routes and promotion of stops  

 On line presence / access to information  

 Increase dwell time with “things to do” itineraries and packages of activities  

 Information on parking  

 Signage to special and unique attractions  
 
Building confidence will require a focus on the quality of place in terms of security and 
safety and cleanliness and appearance. This is about getting the basics right with attention 
given to:   

 State of bins and frequency of emptying 

 Pavement repair – uneven and broken / patching 

 Litter, weeds and gutter cleaning  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

10 
 

Create a better connection between residents and their local centres 

 
Over the past year with COVID travel restrictions people have rediscovered their local high 
street and what they have to offer and our Stay local / Love local campaigns have further 
promoted our local centres and businesses.  We have worked with the market towns for a 
number of years helping to facilitate community events and this provides a platform from 
which to develop better and lasting connections between residents and their local high 
streets. 
 
The Vision for Winchester was created through extensive local community participation and 
it will be important to continue to involve these local residents in the mobilisation of the 
agreed priorities.   
 
The new daytime population of home workers also need to be given a reason to use the 
high street, and this can be encouraged by new flexible / co-working spaces.  As well as 
internal shared spaces we need to provide outdoor places for people to meet, more seating 
for rest and relaxation, and to develop the concept of the 15-minute city/town where 
everything is close by and easily accessed. 
 
 

Strengthen the connection between organisations, businesses and events to create a 
whole town experience for the benefit of all. 

 
Winchester district has developed a reputation for its varied programme of year-round 
festivals.  From jazz to chamber music, fashion to poetry and where all artistic genres are 
celebrated.  Of these some are major events in the calendar that attract large numbers of 
visitors from far afield, including the Hat Fair, the UK’s longest continually running festival of 
outdoor arts. Others have a more local focus but nevertheless are central to the 
community’s events programme.   
 
Collectively they all create a kaleidoscope of colourful events and festivals that attract a 
wide and varied audience and demographic.  But this opportunity is far from exhausted.  
Current and proposed new events offer the opportunity to further develop the reputation of 
the Winchester district and its brand, to attract more residents and visitors, influencing them 
to stay longer, spend more, return and recommend to others. 
 
The true benefit of the festivals and events programme is what it has the potential to offer 
holistically.  It offers the opportunity for businesses and organisations across the district to 
directly engage and in doing so the consumer benefits from a themed and joined up offer 
and the businesses benefit too from increased custom.  Making the most collectively of 
these festivals will enable everyone to benefit and create the sense that the whole place is 
part of the celebrations.  Businesses will be encouraged to support and to be part of these 
events by for example, creating a product offer that reflects the theme of the event, develop 
tailored themed promotions, staging themed window displays, creating satellite spaces to 
host elements of an event to more widely spread the event coverage and so on.   
 
 
 

Page 66



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

11 
 

 

Make more of our places as social and community hubs. 

 
As much market commentary has highlighted the reasons people will use high streets is 
changing to have greater emphasis on social and community experiences.  In the short-
term vacant shops and under let spaces could be used for a variety of different uses; more 
creative and artistic activities or sports such as the pop-up table tennis in the Brooks 
Shopping Centre.  A proactive approached is required to work with landlords, planning, 
estates etc. to quickly activate shop fronts and vacant buildings so the high street retains its 
attractiveness and to prevent dead spaces and areas that people start to avoid.  A group 
that brings these stakeholders together is required to enable short term uses to be agreed 
quickly and any barriers overcome early. 
 
Specifically for the city the delivery programme for Central Winchester Regeneration 
provides the opportunity to activate unused and new community / social spaces at Kings 
Walk and Friarsgate Medical centre. There is also the potential to use space at the rear of 
the Bus Station, off Busket Lane for pop-up events and performances. 
 
The Visitor Information Centre will enhance its role, not only as a one-stop shop for all the 
latest information and advice on what is happening across the district, but also as a 
community hub.  It will engage further with local organisations and community groups to 
help support their programmes of activity. This might take the form of drop-in opportunities, 
showcases, displays and small exhibitions, offering a direct channel of engagement to the 
resident community. 
 

Celebrate what we have and our new successes  

 
Winchester city and our market towns are blessed with a higher than average share of 
independent businesses.  This presents an opportunity for the district to capitalise on 
specialist retailing as an attractor to residents and visitors.  We will continue to investigate 
and develop tactical activities and events such as Independent Business Month, as well as 
Independent Trails and an Independents’ Market and an independents’ district-wide e-
commerce platform amongst others are areas to explore. 
 
The independents are the ones that have been at the forefront of new ways of working and 
we need to encourage, showcase and support this change. 
 
The VIC will continue its work in showcasing local businesses, both established and start 
up, in addition to its enhanced community role.  This will be reflected in its product ranges 
as well as working with local businesses and organisations to provide demonstrations, 
workshops, exhibitions and displays as well as other promotional and engagement 
activities, maximising the “Made in Winchester” opportunity.   To promote this new purpose, 
it will develop a tactical delivery role in the “Discover” marketing campaigns which have 
been delivered since March 2020 exploiting the “discover what is on your doorstep” and 
“discover what is happening today” messaging.   
 
The varied range of food and drink businesses are a key asset to the district, including 
several award winning and nationally reputed independent and chain restaurants, many 

Page 67



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

12 
 

capitalising on local produce.  The city will be benefitting from new food and drink offers in 
what was the Guildhall café and a new tenant in Abbey Mill.  Other new and developing 
food and drink offers will emerge across the district, all of which operate as an attractor as 
well as forming key elements of a combined experience for visitors and residents.  
Opportunities to further develop the district’s reputation around food and drink exist and 
tactical opportunities around food and drink trails, themed events and so on should be 
explored. 
 

Foster business resilience 

 
Businesses recognising, adapting and capitalising on the changing high street landscape 
and consumer behaviours, emerging pre-pandemic but which COVID-19 has intensified, will 
be key to forming resilient business models.  The council through is regulatory role, e.g. 
licencing and planning, helps manage and create a supportive environment for businesses 
to operate. 
 
The Additional Restriction Grants programme, funded by central government, has enabled 
the council to direct grant to those businesses most affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, 
primarily in the retail, hospitality and leisure sectors.  These include a Hardship Fund and a 
Transformation, adaptation and diversification grant. 
 
As mentioned earlier, the city council will fund the development and launch of a dedicated 
independent co-operative e-commerce platform with related combined delivery service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

13 
 

THE HIGH STREET PRIORITY PLAN 
April 2021- March 2022 

 

Objectives 
Levers 

Lead Enable  Influence Complement 

Build our brand New campaigns and marketing 
promotions: trails, things to do 
itineraries; packages of 
activities. 
Target new audiences: 
residents; families; newly 
working from home 
 

Street cleanliness and repair 
for a quality public realm 

Commence work on 
strategic propositions for: 
1. Night-time economy 
2. Cultural Manifesto 
3. Street Markets 
 

Build our virtual presence and 
online footprint alongside 
partners activity 
 
 
 

Create connections Stay Local / Love local 
campaigns. 
 
Places to meet information / 
promotion 
 

Mobilise the delivery of the 
Vision for Winchester actions. 
15 minute city: Culture and 
Communities 
 

Flexible co-working spaces 
in local high streets. 

 

Culture and 
creativity for the 
benefit of all 

Promote a holistic and curated 
programme of festivals and 
events 
 
 
 

Support businesses to engage 
with festivals and events so 
they are whole town 
experiences. 
 
Hospitality trade to link to local 
producers / events to offer 
weekend packages. 

Food and drink - 
Hampshire Fare – work 
with the providers and 
producers across the 
district. 

Hat Fair 
 
 
 

Places as social 
and community 
hubs 

Build the role of the VIC as a 
community hub.  

 
Winchester Sport & Leisure Park 
opens. 
 
Organise outdoors social 
activities e.g.  
• a summer “stage” in Abbey 

Kings Walk and Friarsgate as 
new outdoor community 
spaces. 
 
Vacant Shop – pop-up and 
temporary uses.  
 
Liaise with planning and 
business rates, estates teams 

Undertake conversations 
with landlord and letting 
agents to establish what 
would enable pop up and 
temporary uses.   
 
One off creative / light trail 
and show and VR 
experience. 

 

P
age 69



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023: Appendix 1. 

 
 

14 
 

Gardens or Busket Yard 
• outdoor cinemas, 
• outdoor beach. 
 
More social spaces / places to 
sit and meet. 

to identify and resolve barriers 
to reusing space.  
 
Sports based events - outdoor 
table tennis – coincide with 
and link to national sporting 
events / celebrations. 

 
Education style event 
supported by kid’s 
entertainments – soft play 
area. 
 

Celebrate what we 
have and achieved 

Deliver a programme of 
campaigns: 
• Dream Now, Travel later, 
• Shop local / love local,  
• King Alf trail, 
• Wellbeing campaign – connect 

with others; be active; keep 
learning, 

• Digital trails. 
 

VIC to showcase local 
independents. 
  
Displays – shop windows and 
pop-ups that can be used by 
local creative /arts businesses. 
 
Offer space to showcase 
independent businesses in a 
shared market place / students 
start-up businesses product 
testing. 
 

Find ways to get online 
customer to come to the 
store so digital online and 
high-street experience is 
linked.   
 
Supporting businesses to 
adapt to provide a special 
experience / up-selling. 

Independents’ trail and markets. 
 
 
Building connections between 
complementary businesses e.g. 
wine shop selling chocolates / 
cheese shop selling bread…. 
 

Foster business 
resilience 

COVID-19 Business Support 
and Information – Digital 
Islands. 
 
E-commerce platform for local 
online and delivery 
collaboration. 
 
COVID-19 Marshals and 
Ambassador patrols.  
 
 
 

Business diversification and 
innovation funds. 
 

Make Winchester Work for 
You – launches in with 
Hampshire County Council. 

Winchester BID: Street Cleaning, 
Floral displays, 
Christmas Lights, 
Pub/ Shop Watch and Rangers. 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 70



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
March 2021 

 
 

15 
 

Festival and Events - existing and planned 2021/22 
 
Will be updated / checked against the latest festivals list for 2021-22   (due to postponements) 
 

 April - June July - September October - December January – March 

Winchester Winchester Sport & Leisure Park 
opens 

Winchester Chamber Music 
Festival 

Winchester Fashion Week 

Hampshire Food Festival 

Winchester’s Cheese & Chilli Festival 

Heritage Open Days 

Hat Fair 

Green Week 

Winchester Jazz Festival (tbc) 

Writers’ Weekend 

Winchester Comedy Festival 

Foodies Festival 

 

Flower Festival  

Wine Festival 

Fireworks and Bonfire 

Christmas lights switch on 

Christmas market 

Winchester Guitar Festival (tbc) 

Winchester Poetry Festival 

Winchester Film Festival (tbc) 

Mucky Weekend 

Winchester Comedy 
Gala (tbc) 
Winchester Beer and 
Cider (tbc) 

Market 
Towns and 
rural 

The Grange Festival 

Bishop’s Waltham Festival 

Wickham Festival 

Open Air Cinema& Theatre – 
Avington Park 

Hambledon Wine Festival (tbc) 

Solent Overlord Show (Denmead) 

Alresford Agricultural Show 

 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 71



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
March 2021 

 
 

16 
 

Government’s Roadmap out of lockdown, 22 February 2021 
 

12 April 17th May 21st June 

• Indoor leisure (including gyms) open for use 
individually or within household groups. 

• Rule of 6 or two households outdoors. No 
household mixing indoors. 

• Outdoor attractions such as zoos, theme parks 
and drive-in cinemas. 

• Libraries and community centres. 
• Personal care premises. 
• All retail. 
• Outdoor hospitality. 
• All children’s activities, indoor parent & child 

groups (up to 15 parents). 
• Domestic overnight stays (household only). 
• Self-contained accommodation (household 

only). 
• Funerals (30), wakes, weddings and 

receptions (15). 
• Minimise travel. No international holidays. 
• Event pilots begin. 

 

• Indoor entertainment and attractions. 
• 30 person limit outdoors. Rule of 6 or two 

households (subject to review). 
• Domestic overnight stays. 
• Organised indoor adult sport. 
• Most significant life events (30). 
• Remaining outdoor entertainment (including 

performances). 
• Remaining accommodation. 
• Some large events (expect for pilots) - capacity 

limits apply. 
o Indoor events: 1,000 or 50%. 
o Outdoor other events: 4,000 or 50%. 
o Outdoor seated events: 10,000 or 25%. 

• International travel - subject to review. 

• No legal limits on social contact 
• Nightclubs. 
• Larger events. 
• No legal limit on life events. 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 72



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

1 
 

Project Delivery Plan - Progress Report November 2021 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

Build our brand 

Lead New campaigns and marketing 
promotions: trails, things to do 
itineraries; packages of activities. 

 

Target new audiences: residents; 
families; newly working from home 

 

Approved combined market towns guide and 
individual map for each market town.  

 

Television commercial (in collaboration with 
Visit Hampshire) aired at The Hundred 
tournament across 4 matches in July/August. 

 

New Trail launched 

 Tree Trail – launched Green Week 

 

Visit Winchester progressive web app for 
Keats trail on OS Secret Stories app  

 

New audiences: 

 About Winchester feature to reach 
residents audiences 

 Autumn staycations – city & market town 
breaks with itineraries for exploring the 
districts’ market towns. 

 

Publish and distribute:  

Discover Winchester District’s Market Towns 
(combined guides) and Market Towns Maps 

 

Publish Welcome Back to Winchester Visitor 
Guide  

 

Promote Christmas activities via 
christmasinwinchester.co.uk.  

 

Reciprocal marketing with Travelodge – VW to 
feature in Travelodge blog and e-news and VW 
will feature Travelodge accommodation on VW 
website.  

 

Issue Christmas in Winchester press release 

 

Poster campaign across South Western Railway 
(SWR) station network and inclusion in SWR blog 
and e-newsletters. 

 

Promotion of Light Festival and associated 
activities via Light Festival campaign page and 
VW social media channels 

Enable Street cleanliness and repair for a 
quality public realm 

Scoping and costing of improvement has 
been undertaken  

 

Town Forum City Centre Group meeting to be 
held to agree approach for public realm 
management. 

P
age 73



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

2 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

Meeting with Town Forum member to discuss 
public realm management 

Influence Commence work on strategic 
propositions for: 

1. Night-time economy 

2. Cultural Manifesto 

3. Street Markets 

A Request for Quote (RFQ) to procure an 
external agency to undertake an assessment 
of Street Markets is being drafted. 

 

Undertake, complete and disseminate the findings 
of the Street Markets research. 

Create connections 

Lead Stay Local / Love local campaigns.   

 

Places to meet information / promotion 

 

Launched ‘5 things to do this weekend’ and 
‘5 things to do this week’ videos running 
alternate weeks since October across our 
social media channels and associated blog 
on Visit Winchester website.  

 

Made in Winchester campaign launched 

Continue with ‘5 things to do’ 

 

Collate information on eco-friendly breaks in 
Winchester – highlighting local food, sustainable 
restaurants and hotels. 

 

Develop DW PR campaign on 3G (3 generational 
meet ups) 

Enable Mobilise the delivery of the Vision for 
Winchester actions. 

15 minute city: Culture and 
Communities 

 

The approach to implementing the 
Winchester Town Vision considered at Town 
Forum meeting on 16 September 2021 

 

Application to the Community Renewal Fund 
was submitted to support Cultural and 
Communities outcomes.  This was 
unsuccessful, however it can act as a pipe 
line project ready for any other opportunities 
to apply for funding. 

Procure consultants to deliver staff and member 
planning sessions. 

Report back to Town Form with draft 
implementation framework March 2022  

Influence Flexible co-working spaces in local 
high streets. 

See section at the end of the table on –  

Make Winchester Work for You – launches in 
with Hampshire County Council;  

 

 

P
age 74



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

3 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

Businesses and events to create a whole town experience 

Lead Promote a holistic and curated 
programme of festivals and events 

 

WCC update given at Festivals in Winchester 
meeting on 14 Oct (9 attendees) 

 

RFQ for Lights Festival issued;  event to be 
held in February 2022 

 

Cultural Network Meeting held at Inn the Park 
16 September attracted approx. 14 guests 

 

Arts News continues to be issued monthly. 

 

Request for Quote for Festivals research issued – 
deadline 19 Nov. 

Undertake, complete and disseminate the findings 
of the Festivals research. 

 

Planning for next Cultural Network Meeting – 
February date TBC 

Enable Support businesses to engage with 
festivals and events so they are whole 
town experiences. 

 

Hospitality trade to link to local 
producers / events to offer weekend 
packages. 

The Monthly Business Bulletin now includes 
a monthly update in the Business Bulletin of 
upcoming Festivals and Events in the District. 

 

A 2022 Festivals/Events summary is being 
prepared to be shared in the January 2022 
Business Bulletin.  

 

Links to identify hospitality trade identified to 
work with Festivals/Events to promote 
alongside their events to create a whole City 
experience with the bigger Festivals.  

 

Meeting with The Hat Fair to discuss past 
business engagement and will continue to 
work with them to encourage further business 
engagement for 2022.  

 

The Light Festival includes measures to involve 
local businesses and residents in the design and 
delivery of the event. 

 

It is supported by a partnership of local 
organisation, Winchester Cathedral, Hampshire 
Cultural Trust, Play to the Crowd, Winchester BID. 

 

Engagement with Winchester’s Festivals to 
investigate current business engagement. Also 
completing a poll in December 2021 Business 
Bulletin to gain more understanding on how the 
Businesses of the District rate their level of 
engagement with the Festivals/Events. 

 

Proactively encourage businesses to take part in 
festivals programme via business groups and 
direct contact.  

P
age 75



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

4 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

Influence Food and drink - Hampshire Fare – 
work with the providers and producers 
across the district. 

Meeting with Hampshire Fare, who champion 
local food producers with a view to work on 
joint projects such as promoting local food 
and drink suppliers in the District. 

Hampshire Fare have submitted a proposal for 
Hampshire Food Festival 2022 to take place in 
Winchester.  

Research underway for potential Food & Drink 
trails within the City and the Market Towns.  

Places as social and community hubs 

Lead Build the role of the VIC as a 
community hub.  

 

Winchester Sport & Leisure Park 
opens. 

 

Organise outdoors social activities e.g.  

• a summer “stage” in Abbey Gardens 
or Busket Yard 

• outdoor cinemas, 

• outdoor beach. 

 

More social spaces / places to sit and 
meet. 

 

 

New centre opened on 29 May 2021. 

 

 

No opportunity to progress this type of event 
at an appropriate location or time, but 
investigations and discussions on options 
have been taking place: 

 

Meeting with Play to the Crowd to gain scope 
on their capacity to programme an outdoor 
theatre in Busket Yard, if Winchester City 
Council were to fund the temporary outdoor 
stage.  

 

Further research has been completed on 
other options, such as an outdoor Cinema.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further research to be completed and request to 
quotes to be undertaken.  

 

Work towards Spring 2022 to have an outdoor 
stage event in Buskett Yard.  

 

 

 

 

Enable Kings Walk and Friarsgate as new 
outdoor community spaces. 

 

Vacant Shop – pop-up and temporary 

Buskett Yard public realm improvements 
completed. 

 

Rediscover campaign across RPLC and 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

5 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

uses. Liaise with planning and 
business rates, estates teams to 
identify and resolve barriers to reusing 
space.  

 

Sports based events – e.g. outdoor 
table tennis, to coincide with and link to 
national sporting events / celebrations 

157/158 High Street installed. Encouraging 
people to support district’s high streets, 
independent shopping/food and drink/days 
out. 

 

No opportunity to progress this type of event 
at an appropriate location – e.g. vacant shop. 

 

Cross council meeting to collate information 
and guide on how communities can hold 
Jubilee celebrations  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issue guide to community groups on how to hold a 
Jubilee event, including street parties. 

Influence Undertake conversations with landlord 
and letting agents to establish what 
would enable pop up and temporary 
uses.   

 

One off creative / light trail and show 
and VR experience. 

 

Education style event supported by 
kid’s entertainments – soft play area. 

 

Vacant post has delayed this engagement  

 

 

Light Festival in February 2022 has been 
scoped and quotations are currently being 
invited. 

 

Research completed that indicates there is a 
gap for this in the Winchester District. But no 
opportunity to progress this type of event at 
an appropriate location – e.g. vacant shop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further lookout for appropriate location for this 
event.  

 

Celebrate what we have and achieved 

Lead Deliver a programme of campaigns: 

• Dream Now, Travel later, 

• Shop local / love local,  

• King Alf trail, 

• Wellbeing campaign – connect with 
others; be active; keep learning, 

Discover Winchester members committed to 
renewals.  

 

Digital summer campaigns:  

Launch of Tree Trail 

Win a hamper of local produce vouchers 

Procurement of PR agency to Discover 
Winchester and press release issued announcing 
partnership (printed in Chronicle 11/11/21) 

 

Launch Eat, Shop, Explore Winchester 
promotional film (RFQ issued 12/11/21) for 
delivery 1 March 2022 

P
age 77



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

6 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

• Digital trails. 

 

Top ten green spaces to explore in 
Winchester this summer 

Summer holidays in Winchester  

Time for a staycation 

Heritage Open Days  

Made in Winchester 

 

5 B2C e-newsletters issued 

 

Autumn Festivals – Heritage Open Days, 

Family fun – Halloween Half Term – 5 things 
to do this weekend (23-24 Oct) 

Flower Festival 

Christmas offer via 
christmasinwinchester.co.uk 

 

Winchester Feature in British Travel Journal  

 

Launch new guides:  

-Welcome back to Winchester Destination guide 

-Discover Winchester District’s Market Towns 

-Market Towns Maps 

Enable VIC to showcase local independents. 

  

Displays – shop windows and pop-ups 
that can be used by local creative /arts 
businesses. 

 

Offer space to showcase independent 
businesses in a shared market place / 
students start-up businesses product 
testing. 

 

No1 Independent street shop front displayed 
in VIC with associated PR to support 
Independents week.  Shop front retained and 
acts as a focal point to promote the 
ShopAppy aggregated Click & Collect service 
hosted by the VIC.   

The VIC also acts as a collection point for 
Zedify, who are delivering ShopAppy orders 
via their electric bike service.   

 

The VIC have significantly extended their 
range of locally produced retail range.   

 

Request for Quote to be issued for the dressing of 
the Debenhams vacant shop windows. 

 

Development work around a Made in Winchester 
brand concept to further support local 
independent creatives 

P
age 78



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

7 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

Influence Find ways to get online customer to 
come to the store so digital online and 
high-street experience is linked.   

 

Supporting businesses to adapt to 
provide a special experience / up-
selling. 

ShopAppy has held a number of webinars to 
support the businesses gaining footfall in 
store from their online reach.  

 

Explore possibility for interactive trail and a 
training programme for businesses to have the 
tools to transform their digital followers into 
footfall. 

Foster business resilience 

Lead COVID-19 Business Support and 
Information – Digital Islands. 

 

E-commerce platform for local online 
and delivery collaboration. 

 

 

 

COVID-19 Marshals and Ambassador 
patrols.  

 

Digital Islands Business support programme 
delivered 

 

Over 150 businesses signed up across 
Alresford, Bishop’s Waltham and Wickham.  
VIC to be aggregated click and collect 
location and also signed up. 

 

COVID Marshals undertook patrol weekly 
(Thursday to Sunday) across the district high 
streets to July 2021. 

 

VIC Information Officers undertake periodic  
street patrols to meet and greet high street 
users 

 

 

 

 

Continue to promote the ShopAppy platform to 
gain further business sign ups.  

Enable Business diversification and innovation 
funds. 

 

Business challenges grant 

 

 

Additional Restrictions Grants (ARG)  
programme 

TAD Round two 16 September 2021 

£289,336.97 to 32 organisations 

 

COVID Business Challengers Fund £65,000 

Development of a policy for final ARG grant award 
to organisations still impacted by COIVD-19 in the 
retail, hospitality and leisure sector and its supply 
chain. 

P
age 79



Winchester District High Streets’ Priorities Plan 2021-22 
BHPC 0023:  Appendix 2.  Action Plan progress report

 

 

8 
 

Objective 
and Role 

Action Progress / Update Q1 and Q2 

April to October 2021 

Forward plan activity Q3 and Q4 

November 21 to March 2022 

 to 18 organisations 

 

Crowd funding green business fund lunched 
6 September 2021 

Influence Make Winchester Work for You – 
launches in with Hampshire County 
Council. 

Phase one Completed July 2021 

 

Marketing campaign to promote Winchester 
to London based companies that have a high 
number of employees that commute from 
Winchester: 

 A bespoke Winchester location web page 
created 

 A mailshot to over 5,000 targeted London 
business recipients 

 320,289 impressions received overall 

 3,031 total clicks to Satellite Office 
webpages 

 Winchester LinkedIn posts received 
13,802 impressions with a reach of 6,596 
views  

 Four satellite office business space 
enquiries for the Winchester District 

Phase two Autumn 2021 

 

The Guardian Ad Campaign – Making Hampshire 
Work for you – 

Phase 2 will aim to reach a new audience through 
targeting the London based readers of a national 
broadsheet newspaper. 

 

Follow up the HCC for a progress report on 
inward investment enquiries. 

 
 

P
age 80



19 November 2021 WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL –  BUSINESS & HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
  

 

 

 

 Item Lead Officer Date for 
Committee  

Date for Cabinet 
(if applicable) 

1   Winchester District High Streets’ Priority Plan – up-date and progress report Susan Robbins 30 Nov 2021   

2   Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Asset Management Strategy Janette Palmer 30 Nov 2021  8 Dec 2021  

3   A Digital Economy for Winchester - Update Andrew Gostelow 1 Mar 2022   

4   Housing Strategy Gillian Knight 1 Mar 2022   

5   New Homes Plan Gillian Knight 1 Mar 2022   

6   Establish a task group re previous resolution concerning housing tenures and 
housing need of residents over a lifetime. 

Gillian Knight 1 Mar 2022   

7   Previous Committee resolution: a proposal be brought forward for a revised 
business case for a special vehicle to manage sub-market rented housing in 
Winnall 

Gillian Knight 1 Mar 2022   

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 September 2021
	Minutes

	6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Asset Management Strategy
	HRA AMS  - APPENDIX 1 (REF: BHP0021)

	7 Winchester District High Streets’ Priority Plan – up-date and progress report
	BHPC 0023 App 1 High Street Priority Plan 2021-22- Revised Final
	BHPC 0023 App 2 High Street Priority Plan progress report

	9 To note the Work Programme for 2021/22



